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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financlal Statements
Opinlon

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Edslweiss Finvest Private Limited {"the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement
of Other Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting poticies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind
AS financlal statements give the information requtived by the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) in the manner s¢ required and
glve a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2019, its profit including other comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basls for Opinlon

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143{10} of the Act. Our responsibifities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in sccordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements and the Code of
Ethics. We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and approptiate to provide 2 basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements for the financlal year ended March 31, 2019. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter s provided
in that context.

We have determined the matters described balow to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have
tulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performanee of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone ind AS financial
statements. The resuits of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.

S.R. Batlibai & Co. LLP. a Linuted Liabitity Partnerstip with LEP identily No. AAB-4294
Reqd. Oltice ; 22, Camac Streel, Block "B, 3rd Floor, Kolkata 700 016
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Key audit matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impa (as described In note 12 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements}

The Cempany’s impalment provision for

receivables from financing business is based on

the expected credit loss approach laid down under

ind AS 109. Under this approach, the

management has been required to exercise

significant judgement in areas such as;

+«  calculation of past default rates

»  assigning rating grades to leans for which
external rating Is not avallable

s  calibrating external ratings-linked probability
of defauit ta align with past default rates

«  applying macro-economic factors to arrive at

farward looking probability of default

Our audit procedures included considering the appropriateness
of the Company’s accaunting policies for impairment of financial
assets and assessing compliance with Ind AS 109.

We performed test of controls on classification of receivables into
varions stages through inspection of evidence and re-
performance of those controls.

Wae performed tests of details, on a sample basis and inspected
the repayment schedule from the undedying borrower
agreements and collections made on the due dates which formed
the hasis of the staging of loans.

e significant assumptions regarding the | = Weassessed
probability of various scenarios and = the Company's expected credit loss Pprovisioning
tiscounting rates for different loan products methodology

In view of the high degree of estimation Involved in
the process of calculating impairment provision
and considering Its significance to the overall
financial statements, wherehy any error or
omission in estimation may give rise to a material
misstatament of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, it is considered as a key audit matter,

« the models used in determining the impairment provision
the appropriateness of the historical data and the external
rating considered for calculating the default and loss given
default rates .

« the key assumptions especially in respect of the macro-
economic factors and discounting rates

We tested the arlthmetical accuracy of the models.

Performed analytical procedures by determining various ratios or
percentage based measures to review overall reasonableness of
the estimate determined by the management.

We reviewed the relevant disclosures made In the standalone Ind
AS financiat statements In aceordance with the requirements of
Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107.

Transition to IND AS accounting framework (as described in note 49 of the standalone ind AS financial statements}

The standalone IND AS financial statements are
the first financial statements the Company has
prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods
up to and including the year ended 31 March
2018, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting
standards notified under the section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Indlan GAAP or previous GAAP).
Accordingly, for transition to Ind AS, the Company
has prepared financial statements which comply
with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31
March 2019, together with the comparative
period data as at and for the year ended 31 March
2018. In preparing these financial statements, the
Company's opening halance sheet was prepared
as at 1 Apnl 2017, the Company's date of
transition to Ind AS,

Ouraudit procedures included considering the appropriateness of the
processes iaid down by the management to implement such transition
combined with procedures performed as follows:

We reviewed the nature of the Ind AS adjustments based on the
appHcable Ind AS and previeus period accounting policies
prepared in accordance with IGAAP.

We reviewed the first-time adoption exemptions availed by the
Company as per ‘Ind AS 101 First-Time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards’.

Performed test of details by inspection of contracts, documents
and policies to assess the appropriateness of the Ind AS
adjustments

We tested the anthmetical accuracy of the Ind AS adjustments

We reviewed the disclosures with respect to the transition in
accordance with the reguirements of ind AS 101.
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Koy audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Some of the key Ind AS Impact items in case of the
Company are;

« Impairment provisioning as per expected
credit loss approach

+  Recognition of interest income/ expense as
per the effective Interest rate method

s Fairvaluation of financial instruments

In view of the material impact and the complexity

of implementation of the Ind AS framework, the

transition to ind AS was of particufar importance

for our audit as any error could lead to material

misstatement in the preparation and presentation

of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,

IT systems

The reliabllity and security of IT systems play a key | Our audit procedures assisted by our IT specialists, included;
role in the financial reporting process of the
Company. The Company's key financial | General IT controls: We tested the governance and other higher
accounting and reporting processes are highly | controls operating over the IT enviranment of the Company, including
automated, whereby any gaps in the IT control | system access and system change management. We considered the
environment could restt in a material | appropriateness of the access rights granted to applications relevant
misstatement of the financlal accounting anrd | to financlal accounting and reporting systems and the operating
reporting records . effectiveness of controls over granting, removal and appropriateness
of access rights.

Therefore, the assessment of the general IT
controls and the application controls specific to | Application controls: Ws tested the design and operating
the accounting and preparation of financial | effectiveness of automated controls critical to financial accounting
information is considered to be a key auditmatter. | and reporting, For any identified deficiencies, tested the design and
operating effectivaness of compensating controls and, where
necessary, extended the scope of our substantive audit procedures.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Information
included In the Annuai report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS financlal statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standatone ind AS financial statements, our responsibitity is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge abtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this ether information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibliities of Management and those Charged with Govemance for the standatone Ind AS Financlal Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with raspsct to the
preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principies generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified urder section
133 of the Act read with [the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
plementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
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accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS
financlal statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concerm, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of
accounting untess management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemnative
but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are also responsibla for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responstbilities for the Audit of the standalone lid AS Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due te fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butIs not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or errorand are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expacted to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone |nd AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of matertal misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or emor, design and parform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and apprapriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from emor, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Dbtain an understanding of intemnal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

« Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. f we conclude that a matertal uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our concfusions ate based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. Howevar, future events or coaditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concem.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosutes, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underiying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves falr presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In intemal control that we Identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with then ali relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were of most

=== gignlficance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 and are

N
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therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation preciudes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated In our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outwelgh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

1

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the transition date opening
balance sheet as at April 01, 2017 included in these standalone Ind AS financial staternents, are based on the previously
issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006
{"IGAAP’) audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 dated
May 02, 2018 and May 16, 2017 respectively, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as
adjusted for the differences In the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have
been audited by us.

‘The transition date opening balance sheet of the Company as at Aprit 01, 2017 include the financial information on
account of merger impact of transfer of assets and liabllities from Edelwelss Finance and Investment with effective date
August 01, 2017 [refer Note 51.1to the standalone Ind AS financial statements]. The said financial information included
in these standalone Ing AS financial statements are based on financial information previously prepared In accordance
with the Companies (Accounting Standards} Rules, 2006, audited by the other auditors, and have been restated to comply
with Ind AS Adjustments made to the financial Information previously prepared in accordance with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

3. Asrequirad by the Companies (Auditor's Reporf) Order, 2018 (“the Order”), Issued by the Central Government of India

in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

4. Asrequired by Section 143{3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{b} Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by faw have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those bhooks;

(¢} The Balante Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

{&) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 takes on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a directorin
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

{  With respectto the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financiat reporting of the Company with reference
to these standatone ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report In “Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid / provided by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule ¥ to the Act;
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{h) Withrespecttothe other mattersto beincluded inthe Auditor's Repertin accordance with Rule 11 ofthe Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended In our opinion and to the best of our infarmation and according to
the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclased the impact of pending litigations on its financial position In its standalone Ind AS
financial statements - Refer Note 41 to the Ind AS financlal statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for materal
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts - Refer Note 51.4 to the
standalone Ind AS financial statements;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Al Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

[rwf""" v 7

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number; 102102
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2019
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on other lagas and regulatory requirements™ of our report of
avan date

Re: Edelwelss Finvest Private Limitad

)  (a) The Company has maintained propsr records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

(b) Allfixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the yearbut there Is a regular programme
of verification which, in cur opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets, No material discrepancies were noticed on such varification.

{c) According to the Information and explanations given by the management, the titie deeds of immovabie properties
Included in property, plant and equipment;/ fixed assets are held in the name of the company.

Gi) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under clause 3{iij of the
Orderare not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upen.

(i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and.audit procedures performed, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3
(@), (b} and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

{iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable
and hence not commented upon,

7] The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingiy, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable,

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Gentral Government has not specified the maintenance of cost

records under section 148{1) of the Act, for the services of the Company.

{vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and otherstatutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a
few cases. As Informed, the provisions of sales tax, weaith tax, value added tax, excise duty and customs duty are
currently not appifcable to the Company.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of pravident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months fram the date
they became payable.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues outstanding of income tax, sales-tax, setvice tax,
customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are

as follows:
Name of the ‘Nature of Amountunder - | Amountpaid® | Period towhich Forum where
statute - | disputeddues | dispute . (Rs.in{ {Rs.Incrore) | theamount dispute is pending
Lo ] com) relates '
Income Tax Income Tax 8.38 2.42 | AY2014-15 The Commisstoner
Act, 19581 of Income Tax
) {Appeals)
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{viif)

{ix)

)

(xi)

{xii)

(i)

(xiv)

(x¥)
(xvi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the managsment, the Company has not
defauited in repayment of loans er borrowings to a financial institution or bank or dues to debenture holders,

According to the information and explanations given by the ménagement, the Company has not raised any money
by way of initfal public offer ar further public offer.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for which those were
raised, though idle/surplus funds which were notrequired for immediate utiiization were gainfully invested in liquid
assels payable on demand.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and falr view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by
the Company or on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been notlced or reported during
the year,

According fo the Informatfon and expianations given by the management, the managerial remuneration has been
paid / provided In accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Companles Act, 2013,

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi} of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where appiicable and the details have baen disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the informatian and explanatiens given to us and on an overatl examination of the balance sheet, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
tiebentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable
to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactiens with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Act.
According to the infarmation and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has registered as required,
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For S.R. Batilibol & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
{CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Lfaﬂfﬁ’“' ey

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
Place of Signature: Mumbal

Date: May 13, 2019
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading *Report on ather legal and regulatory requirements™ of OUr report
of even date

Report on interal Financial Controls under Clause (f) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the “Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Edelwelss Finvest Private Limited (“the Com pany”)
as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Intemal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsibla for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internatl
control over financlal reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential compenents of intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of tntemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities Include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
Intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the ordery and efficient conduct of Its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financiat information,
as required under the Act,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls overfinancial reporting with reference
to these standalone ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as
specified undersection 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financlal controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of intemal financial conirols over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of Internal financial controls over
financlal reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effactiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whather due to fraud or error. :

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for okr audit opinion on
the intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these standaione ind AS Financial
Statements

A company's intemal financiat control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements
Is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financlal reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary fo
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with gensrally accepted accounting principles, and that recelpts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a materiat effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting with Raferance to these standalone Ind AS
Financlal Statements

Bacause of the inherent limitations of intemnal financial controls over financlal reporting with reference to these standalone
ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of contrals, material
misstatements dus to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internai financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financlal contra) over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind A$ financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

Opinton

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate interal financlal controls over financial reporting with
referance to these standalone Ind AS financia! statements and such internal financial controls over financlal reporting with
reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intermal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contro!s Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of india.

For §.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA) Firm Registration Number; 301003E/E3000056

per Shrawan Jalar

Partner

Membership Number: 202102
Place of Signature: Mumbal
Date: May 13, 2019
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

(Cwrrency:Indinn rupees in million)

ASSETS

Financial asscts
{a) Cash and cash equivalenis
(b) Derivative financial instruments
{c) Securitics held for trading
(d) Receivables
(i) Trade receivables
¢ii) Other receivables
(¢} Loans
{f) Ilnvestmenis
{g) Other financial assets

Non-finaneial assets

() Current tax assels (net)

(b) Deferred tax assets {nct)

(¢} Property, Plant and Equipment
(d) Other Intangible assets

(e} Other non- financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial Habilities
(a) Derivative nancial instruments
(b) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
{¢} Duebtsecurities
{d) Borrowings (other than debt sccurities)
{c) Subordinaled Habilitics
{f) Other financial lisbilities

Non-financial linbilities
{a) Current tax liabilities (net)
(b) Provisions
{c} Other non-financial liabililies

Equity
(a) Equity share capital
by Instruments entirely equity in nature
(c) Other equity

TOTAL LIABILITEES AND EQUITY
The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial siatements

As per our report of even date aflached

For 8. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
&
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per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No: 102102

Mumbai May 13, 2019

Note

24
25
26

27
28
29

{052

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2619 March 31,2018 April 01, 2017
T 4G 363.75 70.20
. 70688 281.70 259.68
114286 1,699.74 1,230.94
. 2134 1285 0.02
12646 10.60 69.76
| 24,560.55 27,977.43 14,363.67
. 1,862.01 4617.50 3,859.03
| §68.12 1933 460.66
33,658.30 34,988.90 20.313.96
- 147.32 146.82 106.05
11422 286.97 51.90
135 L13 110

635 - .
.. 1BL56 58.90 17.10
T 370.80 493,82 176.15
34,029.10 3548272 20490.11
42249 21244 266.32
32389 345.54 74.35
222757 17,970.76 12,045.64
3378 8,198.80 12.01
16107 161.26 161.12
- 3274 16.54 58,65
" 23,543.23 76,905.34 13,5180
S 26393 252.98 4259
- 1490 236 168
4207 18.65 5.05
32090 273.99 49.32
© 31326 33326 28,06
. . 22241

| 9,831.71 7970.13 6,672.21
10,164.97 §,303.39 6,922.70
"34,029.10 35482.73 20490.11

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Amit Dhawan
Managing Directod & CEQ
DIN: 02800746

Rill ndhi
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai May 13,2019
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Ashish K|
irtClor
DIN: (7789972

-] L
VW’}\J bt
Niket Joshi
Company Sccretary




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Staternent of Profit and Loss for the year cnded March 31, 2019

(Currency:Indian rupees in million)

Revenue from operations

Interest income

Pividend income

Fee income

Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes (including treasury income)

Other income
Total Revenue

Expenses

Finasnice costs

Impairment on firancial instruments
Employee benefits expense

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Other expenses

Total expenses
Prafit before tax

Tax expenses
{1} Current tax
(2) Deferred tax expense / {credit) {net)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

{) Iterns that will not be reclassificd to profit or loss
Remeasucement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans (OC1)
Income tax ~ QOCI - that will not'be reclassified

Total

Total comprchensive income

Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs, 10 each);

(1) Basic (INR)
(2) Diluted (INR)

The accompanying noies arc an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even dale attached

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
hartered Accountanis .
[CAl Firm Registration Number; 301003E/E300005

[\fcu\/"" N e

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No: 102102

Mumbai May 13, 2019

Note

30
3
12
33

34

35
35
37
17
33

39
39

40
40

1o 52

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
4,702.61 3,212.29
170.18 76216
11939 84.75
265.60 (184.34)
0. -
5,251.19 3.874.36
2,264.01 1,504.49
119.59 91743
112,76 36.10
0.89 0.11
217.48 134.84
2,714.73 2,592.97
2,543.06 1,281.39
670.17 471.90
164.87 (260.35)
1,708.02 1,063.84
(1.89) 0.08
0.66 0.03)
(1.23) 0.05
1,706.79 1,063.89
51.25 94.49
5125 34,81

For and on hehalf of the Beard of Dircctors

Amit Dhawan
Managing Dircctor & CEO
DIN: 02800746

gt
| Gandhi
inancial Officer

Mumbai May 13, 2019

DIN: 07789972

9] ,
N’:U*},o dart
Niket Joshi
Company Sccretary




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Currency:Indian rupees in million)
A. Equity Share Capital

For the year ended March 31, 2019 For the year- ended March 31, 2018
Outstanding as | Issued during Outstanding as Cutstanding as | issued during the Ouistanding as
Aol 1. 2018 the yo on March 31, on April 1. 2017 " on March 31,
ot April 1, ¢ year 2019 P A, yea 2018
Issued, subscribed and paid up 33326 - 33326 28.06 305.20 333.26
{Equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid.up)
B, Instruments entirely equity In nature
For the year ended March 31, 2019 For the year ended March 31, 2018
Qutstanding as | Issued doring ?:I:;l'l::a ':::rgfs OQutstanding as |Converted during ?:i‘:;::g : s
on April I, 2018 the year 2019 on April 1, 2017 the year 2018
Coempulsorily convertible non- cumulative preference shares
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up of Rs. 10 each
Series A - - - 334 (3.34) -
Series B - - - [13.45 {113.45) -
Serics C - - - 105.62 (105.62) -
B. Other Equity
Share capital Capital Deented Capitat Total
pending redemption i?el::;::i: S;a::al;y :;::lir;ed Contribution - | Attributable to
allotment * reserve & Egquity cquity holders
Balance as at 1st Aprll 2017 82.79 84.34 3,743.44 534,56 222642 0.68 6,672.23
Profit for the year - - - - 1,063.84 - 1,063,84
Other comprehensive income - - - - 0.65 - 005
82.79 84.34 3,743.44 534.56 3,290,31 B.68 1,736.12
Shares issued during the year (8279} - - - - - (8279
Premium received on issue of debentures - - 9.1 - - - 9.11
Income tax impact on ESQPs - - - - 6.12 - 6.12
Transfer to s1atutory reserve - - - 266.44 (266.44) - -
ESOPs charged during the year - - - - - 1.57 L.57
Preemed distribution daring the year - - - - 300.00 - 300.00
Balance as at Mareh 31, 2018 - §4.34 3.752.55 801,00 3.329.99 235 1.970.13
Profit for the year - “ - - 1,708.02 - 1,708.02
Other comprehensive income - - - - {1.23} - {1.23)
- 8434 3,752.55 805.60 5,036.78 2.28 9,676.92
Premium received on issue of debentures - - - 163.33 - - 163.33
Income tax impact on ESOPs - - » - (8.54) . (8.54)
Transfer (o statttory reserve B . - 34164 (341,50} - -
|Balnnce as ot March 31, 2019 - B4.34 3.915.88 1,142,680 4,686.64 128 9,831,71

* Share capital pending allotment on account of merger (Refer note 51,1 )

As per our report of even date attached,

For S, R. Batlibot & Cp. LLP
Chartered Accountants
CAJ Firm Registration Number: 301 003E/E300005

‘va\r—zm- ")/

‘pcr Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No: 102102

/f‘;) L‘Ti_l'ub” Y

//’ ¥ \ch
!':f” "'i""f_.'n )r"\!
2 e, /

Mumbai May 13, 2019

For and on behsif of the Board of Dircctors

Amit Dhawan

Managing Directhr & CEQ

A

[

DiIN: 02800746 DIN: 07785972

A4
BediNGandhi Niket Joshi
ChfeRBinanciat Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai May 13, 2019




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Currency:Indian rupees in million)

‘170.18

For the yeér ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A Cash flow from operating activities - e
Profit before tax 2,543.06 1,281.39
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows: I
Depreciation and amortisation © - 0.89 0.11
Impairment on financial instruments (net) 11959 917.43
Fair value of financial instruments (net) " (161.73) 925.99
Interest income on preference shares A (7.33)
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences o 1665 0.76
Expense on employee stock option scheme T 1.57
Loss on sale of of fixed assets (net) (0.19) -
Working capital changes (nct) L 2,506.27 3,119.92
Trade and other reccivables I (23.42) 46.31
Securities held for trading 529.37 (1,220.28)
Other financial assets - (1,005.96) 409,72
Loans " 3,296.36 (14,531.17)
Investments © - 2,888.75 (590.69)
Other non financial assets T (42.66) {41.80)
Trade payables (21.65) 271.19
Non financial liabilities 342 13.60
Other financial Habilily 43837 (212,78)
.- 8,588.85 (12,735.98)
Income taxes paid o - :{55_9.12) (308.23)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities ~-A S 7,929.13 (13,044.26)
Cash flow from investing activities S
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets T Lo (8.13) (0.14)
Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts ' 0.86 -
Net cash used in investing activities - B (7.27) (0.14)
Cash flow from financing actlvitic; R
Increase in debt securities (refer note 1 below) .- $,246.27 5,150,79
{Decrease) / increase in borrowings other than debt securities {refer note | ) e
below) - (1,861.77) 8,187.16
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities - C : _'{3,615.50) 13,337.95
Net increase in cash and cash cquivalents (A+B+C) 4,306.36 293.55
Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year - 363.75 70.20
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year - 467011 363.75
. For the yénr ended For the year ended
. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Operational cash flows from interest and dividends :
Interest paid  2,058.56 1,646.59
Interest received " 4,213.58 2,846.79
Dividend received 809.10
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Cunrency:Indian rupees in mitlion)

Cash Flow Statement (continued)

Notes: 4
I Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions.

2 Refer note 43 for disclosure relating to changes in liabilitics arising from financing activities

As per our teport of even date attached

For S. R, Batliboi & Co. LLP . For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Pirm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

: Lf‘aw"”“ —V

per Shrawan Jalan Amit Dhawa
Partner Managing Director & CEQ
Membership No: 102102 DIN: 02800746 DIN: 07789972
o
. bt
1 Gandhi Nikcet Joshi

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai May 13, 2019 Mumbai May 13, 2019
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financisl statements for the year ended March 3%, 2019

1. Corporate information:

Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (‘the Company') a private limited company domiciled and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India is subsidiary of ECap Equitics Limited. The
Company was incorporated on August 23, 2006, and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India {("RBI" asa
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company {NBFC-ND-SI).

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of corporate credit and retail credit, Under the corporate
credit vertical it offers structured collateralised credit to corporates and real estate finance to developers and
under the retail credit vertical it offers loan against securities.

2. Basis of preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time).

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements
in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP). These
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 are the first financial statements of the Company
prepared under Ind AS. Refer to note 49 for information on how the Company has adopted Ind AS.

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments such as, derivative financial instruments, and other financial instruments held for rading, which
have been measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values
are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division II[ of the Schedule
HI to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the
reporting date (current) and more than 12 months afier the reporting date (non-current) is presented in *Note
44-Maturity Analysis of assets and Habilities™.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet, They are only offset
and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the
following circumstances:-

¢ The nommal course of business
e The event of default
* The event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Company and or its counterparties

Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements [e.g. ISDAs (International Swaps and
Derivatives Association)] are only presented net when they satisfy the eligibility of netting for all of the above
riteria and not just in the event of default.

<7




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31,2019

4. Significant accounting policies

4.1 Recognition of interest income and dividend income
4.1.1 Effective interest rate (EfR):

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at
FVOCL. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate a shorter period to the gross
carrylng amount of financial instrument.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a
rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
life of the financial asset. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates
charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle including
prepayments penalty interest and charges.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other
than credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

4.1.2 Interest income:

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

‘When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3, the
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost {net of expected
credit loss) of the financial asset, If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired,
the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

4.1.3 Dividend income:

The Company recognised dividend income when the Company’s right to receive the payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,

4.2 Financial instruments:

4.2.1 Date of recognition;
Financial assets and liabilities with exception of loans and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.e. the date the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument, This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account,
The Company recognises borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

4.2.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that arc directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,

T on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
,gﬂUEO/& 2 . s g gl . q' 3
Fa ?"'—\é}':‘\.\ assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately-in

profit or loss,
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

4.2.3

4.24

Day 1 profit and loss:

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair
value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for
which some of the inputs are not obscrvable, the difference between the transaction price and
the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become
observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business mmodel whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, The changes in catrying value of
financia] assets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCD)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair
value of financial assets is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FV TPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
The Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting
ate. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

4.3 Financial assets and liabilities:

4.3.1

Amortized cost and effective interest method

The effiective interest method is & method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fiture cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses,
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross camying amount of a
financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

4.3.2

433

434

435

4.3.6

4.3.7

Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of
financial instraments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the balance
sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain on fair value changes.

Investment in equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss,
unless the management has elected to classify imrevocably some of its strategic equity
investments to be measured at FVOCI, when such instcuments meet the definition of Equity
under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Financial labilities:

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments:

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure
to interest rate, market risk and foreign exchange rate risks.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporiing period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amorised cost at each
reporting date. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR,

The Company issues certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to
performance of specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a
component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at a reporting date. The resultant
‘net unrealised loss or gain’ on the fair vatuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. The debt component of such debentures is measured at
amortised cost using yield to maturity basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial assets and financial labilities in this category are those that are not held for trading
and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an
instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such
designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

* The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on
them on a differetit basis; Or

* The liabilities arc part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; Or




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31,2019

4.3.8

43.9

e The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it
is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value,
Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair
value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company's own credit risk. Such
changes in fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCT and do not get recycled
to the profit or loss. Interest eatned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued
in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/
premium. and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned
on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest
rate,

Loan commitments:

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Company is required to provide
a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer over the duration of the commitment. Undrawn
loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements,

Financial labilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument,

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

4.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business ne.
The Company didn’t reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in current period and previous

period,

4.5 Derecognition of firancial Instruments:

4.5.1

Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either

* The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

» Itretains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party
under pass through arrangement.




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31,2019

contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the *eventual
recipients'), when all of the following conditions are met:

* The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it
has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term
advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at
market rates,

* The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the
eventual recipients.

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash
flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during
the period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual
recipients.

A transfer anly qualifies for derecognition if either:
* The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

* The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred contro! of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to
exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the
transfer,

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have
been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial assef, with
the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment
loss has not already been recorded, The newly recognised financial assets are classified
as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is deemed to be
POCI.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows
discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the
extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

4.5.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantialty
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow
recognised as new financial Liability, is recognised statement of profit and loss.

4.6 Impairment of financial assets:

The Company records provisions based on expected credit loss model (“ECL”) on all loans, other debt

SR financial assets measured at amortised cost together with undrawn loan commitment and financial

N

/—--\ ¢r» guaraniee contracts, in this section all referred to as “Financial instrument”. Equity instruments are not
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. Because ECL consider the amount and timing
of payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when
contractually due.

Simplified approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on itg historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant
financing component, the Company chooses as its sccounting policy to measure the loss allowance by
applying general approach to measure ECL.

General approach

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifctime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses
(12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence
of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring,

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument, In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given
default (L.GD) (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at defauit. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial assets, this is
represcnted by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporiing date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined
based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

Company categories its financial assets as follows:

Stage 1 assets;

Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
(resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 2 assets:

Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recoguition For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months
from reporting date) are recognised,

Stage 3 assets:
Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans,
The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%,
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4.7

4.8

The ongoing assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for working capital
facilities is similar to other lending products. The interest rate used to discount the ECLs for working
capital facilities is based on the average effective interest rate that is expected to be charpged over the
expected period of exposure to the facilities,

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instrurnents with &
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through 2 loss allowance account.

The expected credit losses on the loan commitment have been recognised together with the loss
alowance for the financial asset.

The Company’s product offering includes a working capital facilities with a right to Company to cancel
and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s nofice. The Company does not limit ils exposure to credit
losses to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the
Company’s expectations of the customer behaviour, its likelihood of defauit and the Company’s future
risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.

Collateral valuation;

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit /guarantees, real estate,
receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements,
Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet. However, the fair value
of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at 2 minimum, at inception and re-
assessed on a quartetly basis. However, some collateral, for example, securities relating to margin
requirements, is valued daily,

To the extent possible, the Company uscs active market data for valuing financial assets held as
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value are valued using
models. Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data provided by third parties
such as mortgage brokers, or based on housing price indices.

Collateral repossessed:

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal
operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to
their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original
secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held
for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at
the repossession date in, fine with the Company’s policy.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets
in its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to settle
outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice,
the residential properties under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet,

4.9 Write-offs:

4.10

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Determination of fair value:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

4.11

4.12

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
inferest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are
classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date, The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments:
Those where the inputs that are used for veluation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life,

Level 3 financial instruments:

Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.,

For assels and liabilitics that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfors have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by Te-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement asa
whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation tachniques
including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations,

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected
net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit
risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments,

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts af the end of the reporting period,

Operating leases:

The determination of whether an arrangement is lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right o use the asset.

Lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-tine basis
over the lease term, unless the increase is in line with expected general inflation, in which case lease
payments are recognised based on coniractual terms. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an
expense in the period in which they it is incurred.

Earmings per share:

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.
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4.13

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted carnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number
of equity shares that could have been issned upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

Foreign currency transaction:

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency
of the Company. Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms.of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

4.14 Retirement and other employee benefit:

4.14.1 Provident fund:

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which
is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

4.14,2 Gratuity:

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determins its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any,
is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on
independent actuarial valuation using the Prajected Unit Credit Method.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit Lability, are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings
through QOCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified 1o profit or loss in subsequent periods.
4.14.3 Compensated absences:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitiement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

4.14.4 Deferred bonus;

The Company has adopted a Deferred Bonus Plan under its Deferred Variable Compensation
Plan. A pool of identified senior employees of the Company is entitled for benefits under this
plan. Such deferred compensation will be paid in a phased manner over a future period of time
The measurement for the same has been based on actuarial assumptions and principles.
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4.14.5 Share-based payment arrangements:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services that
are granted by the ultimate parent Company are measured by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date,

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a comresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting
period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

4.15 Property, ptant and equipment:

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that fature economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognized in profit or loss during the reporting period, in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is carlier.
In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respettive fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule II for
calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Building (other than factory building) 60 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computers - servers and networks 6 years

Computers - end user devices, such as desktops, laptops, ete. 3 years

An jtem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain er loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the camrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as of 1 April 2017 (transition date) measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its desmed cost as of the transition date.
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4.16 Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried
at cost less accumylated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life. For
transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible
assets recognised as of 1 April 2017 {transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

4.%7 Impairment of non-financial asseis:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to ifs recoverable amount. The reduction js treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment is
reversed subject {o a maximum carrying value of the asset before impairment.

4.18 Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the
Company, where the possibility of any cutflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the refated asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.
4.19 Income tax expenses:
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
4.19.1 Curren¢ tax:
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or

deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

4.19.2 Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the,
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computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductib e temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred-tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax labilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

4.19.3 Current and deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

4.2¢ Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an origina] maturity of three months or less.

5. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 4, the management is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
cstimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the cstimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies:

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the management has
made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements,

5.1 Business model assessment :

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company determines the business maodel
at a level that reflects how Company’s of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how
the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the

prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and whether the reaseons
are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held, Monitoring is part of the
Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
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5.2

5.3

54

5.5

assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in
business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets,

Significant increase in credit risk:

As explained in note 48.D.1, ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased the Company takes info account qualitetive and quantitative reasonable and supporiable
forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future dewvelopments,
however, may change due to market changes or eircumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid to
transfer 2 liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous} market at the
measurement date under current market conditions {i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financizal
assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they
are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The
inputs to these models are taken from cbservable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value
adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 4.1.1, recognises interest income / expense using
a rate of retum that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of refurn over the expected behavioural
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life
cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes India’s base rate and other fee income, expenses that
are integral part of the instrument

Impairment of Financial assets:

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are
considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

* PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.
+The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credil lessand the qualitative

; S5
assessment A ESE
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» The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

* Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

* Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as
unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD

* Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the
economic inputs into the ECL models

It is Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary.

5.6 Impairment of Non-Financizl assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exist, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

5.7 Provisions and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business,

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where
the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made,
a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical
evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates,

5.8 Provisions for Income Taxes:
Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including Jjudgment on
whether tax positions are prabable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve
complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonabie under the circumstances.

6. Standards issued but not yet effective :
Ind AS 116 Leases:

Ind AS 116 Leases replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability
to make lease payments (i.c., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the vnderlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. As the Company does not
have any material leases, thercfore the adoption of this standard is not likely to have a material impact in its

inancial Statements,




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial! statement for the year ended March 31, 2619

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to Ind AS 109):

The amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a prepayment feature meets
the SPPI condition, the party exercising the option may pay or receive reasonable compensation for the
prepayment irrespective of the reason for prepayment. In other words, prepayment features with negative
compensation do not autématically fail SPPI. These amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April, 2019,

The application of these amendments is not likely to have a material impact on the Financial Statements.
Annual Improvements o Ind AS (2018):
Ind AS 12 Income taxes:

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised the transactions
that generated the distributable profits. This is the case irrespective of whether different tax rates apply to
distributed and undistributed profits. These amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2019

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Setflement (Amendments to Ind AS 19):

The amendments clarify that the past service cost (or of the gain or loss on settlement) is calculated by
measuring the defined benefit liability (asset) using updated assumptions and comparing benefits offered and
plan assets before and after the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) but ignoring the effect of the
asset ceiling (that may arise when the defined benefit plan is in a surplus position). The change in the effect of
the asset ceiling that may result from the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) is determined in a
second step and is recognised in the normal manner in other comprehensive income.

An entity is also now required to use the updated assumptions from this remeasurement to determine current
service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after the change to the plan. In the case
of the net interest, for the period post plan amendment, the net interest is calculated by multiplying the net
defined benefit liability (assef) as remeasured under Ind AS 19 with the discount rate used in the
remeasurement (also taking into account the effect of contributions and benefit payments on the net defined
benefit liability (asset)).

These amendments are to be applied to plan amendments, curtailments or settlements occurring on or afier !
April 2019, The application of these amendments is not likely to have a material impact on the Financial
Statements

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (Appendix C of Ind AS 12):

This Appendix sets out how to determine the accounting tax position when there is uncertainty over income
tax treatments. The Appendix requires an entity to:

*  determine whether uncertain tax positions are assessed separately or as a group; and
* assess whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be used, by an entity in its income tax filings:

If yes, the entity should determine its accounting tax position consistently with the tax treatment used or
planned to be used in its income tax filings.

If no, the entity should reflect the effect of uncertainty in determining its accounting tax position.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019.

p: Accounts for the previous year ended March 31, 2018 were audited by previous auditors — Price Waterhouse
o\ & Co LLP,




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Currency:Indian rupees in million)

8.A

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand
Cash in hand

Balances with banks

- in current accounts

- in fixed deposits with banks

~ in fixed deposits with banks to the extent held as seourity against
borrowings {refer note 8.A below)

Fixed deposit balances with banks earn interest at fixed rate

Encembrances on fixed deposits held by the Company :

Fixed deposits pledged against overdraft facility
RBL Bank Limited

As at As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 April 01,2017

0.0 001

G 18ae 3373 20.18
450191 . -

Lo s 50.01 50.01

470,11 36175 70.20

st 50.01 5001

5041 50.01 5001




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Currency:Indian rupees in million)}

9. Derivative financial instroments

The Company enters into derivatives for risk management purposes. These include hedges that either meet the hedge accounting requirements or hedpes that are
ecenomic hedges, but the Company has clected not (o apply hedge accounting requirements.

The table below shows the fair vatues of derivative financial instruments recorded as assels or liabilities together with their notional amounts / units held,

March 31, 2019
" National . Notional Fair value
Particulars Unit Currency amount Fair value Assct Unit Currency amount Tibility
(i) Equity linked derivatives
Stock Futures Mo of Shares INR 947,349 1379} No of Shares INR 107,525 1.24
Less: amounts offset {13.79) (1.24)
{Refer Note 9.4)
Subtotai(f) - -
(i) Index linked derivatives
Index Futures Index Unils INR 191,175 20.55 -
Options purchased Index Unils INR 213,150 379.35 -
Options sold (written) - Index Units INR 214,950 1.33
Less: amounts offset (20.55) (£.33)
{Refer Notz 9.4)
Subtotal(ii) 379.35 -
(i} Embedded derivatives
In market linked debentures 327.50 422.49
Subtotaldiif) 32750 42249
Total Derivative Financial Instruments 706.85 422,49
March 31, 2018
Notional . . Notional Fair value
Particulars Unit Currency amount Fair value Asset Unit Currency amount liabilicy
(i) Equity linked derivatives
Stock Futures No of Shares ENR 211,725 [.10] Noof Shares INR [68,250 0.56
1Less: amounts offset (1.19} (0.56)
{Refer Note 9.4}
Subtatal(i) - ~
(ii) Index linked derfvatives
Index Futures Index Units INR 38,925 0.77 -
Options purchased Intdex Units INR 44 475. 0.03 -
Options sold (written) - Index Units INR 45,750 10.56
Less: amounts offset 077 (10.56)
{Refor Note 9.4}
Subtotal(ii) 0.03 -
(i) Embedded derivatives
In market linked debentures 287.67 21244
Subtotal(iif) 287.67 212,44
Total Derivative Financial Instruments 28770 212.44




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year endod March 31, 2019

{Currency:Indian rupees in million)

9. Derivative financial Instruments (continued)

April 08, 2017
. . . Fair value
Particulars Unit Currency Notional Fair value Asset Unit Currency Notional Tiability
(I} Equity linked derivatives
Stock Futures No of Shares INR 1,353,600 2.31| Noof Shares NR 2,886,000 16.27
Less: amounts offset (2.31) (16.27)
(Refer Note 9.4}
Subtotalil) - -
(i) Index linked derivatives
Index Futeres index Unils MR 157,800 18.51 -
Options purchased Index Units INR 95,625 40.96 -
Options sold (wrilten) - Index Unils INR 94,050 8.07
Less: amounts offel {I8.51) (8.07)
(Refer Note 9.4)
Subtotal(ii} 40.96 -
(iit} Embedded derivatives
In market linked debentures 218.72 266.32
Subtoial(iii} 218,72 266.32
Total Derivative Financlal Instruments 250.68 266.32

Note: The notional/units held indicate the value of transactions oulstanding at the year cnd and are not indicative of either the market risk or credit risk.

*An embedded derivalive is & component of & hybrid instrument that alse includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the

combined instrumnent vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative, Refer Note 4.3.6 and 4.3.7 for funther details.

Hedging activitics and derivatives

The Company is exposed 1o certain risks relaling to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed using derivative instruments are interest mte risk and
equity index risk. The Company®s risk managefment strategy and how it is applied to manage risk are explained in Note 48.

Derlvatives designated as hedging instruments

The Company has not designated any derivatives as hedging instruments

3
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the finaacial statements for the year euded March 31, 2019
(Currency:Tndian rupecs in million}

U Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2019 March31, 2018  April 01,2017
11. Recelvables [
2) Trade receivables _
- Receivables eonsidered good - unsecured S nag 12.85 0.02
Receivables - credit impaired C L g6 5743 57.40
T 7028 74z
AlHowance for expected credit losses N

Receivables - credit impaired c g§§_49) (57.43) {57.40)
Trade receivables (x) BRI TEY 12.85 0.0z

b) Other receivables = _. .
Receivables idered good - un d$ - : :_!.6i4ﬁ 10.60 69.76
Other receivables (b) - 2646 - 10.60 69.75
Total recelvables (a+b) — 47.80 2345 69,78

§ Includes receivables from companies in the same group. The Company has no history of defaults and expecls no default on these receivobles, accordingly no allowance

for ECL has been recognised on these receivables.

¢} Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade reccivables:

< T Asat As at
March 31, 201% March 31,2018

Impairment zHowance measurad 23 per simplified approach

Jmpairment allowance - opening balance o . 5743 5740

Add/ {less): asset originated or acquired {net) L aed) 0.03
Impairment allowance - closing balance 5649 5743
Notes:

1} No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company elther severally or joimly with any other persan
2) Na trade or other receivables are due from firms or private conpanies in which dirvectors Is partner, a divector or a member.

d} Trade receivables days past due

As at March 31,2019 1-90
Current days 91-180 days 181-360 days > 360 days Tota!
ECL Rates 0% 0% 0% 0% 00.0%
Estimated total gross cartying amount at default * - 21.34 - - 56.49 77.83
ECL. - Simplified approach - - - - 56.49 56.49
Net carrying amount - 21.34 - - 21.34
As at March 31, 2018 1-50
Current days 91-180 days £81-360 days > 360 days Total
ECL Rates 0% 0% 0% 0% 100.0%
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default * - 12.35 - - 57.43 70,28
ECL - Simplified approach - - . B 5743 57.43
Nef carrying amount - 12.45 - - - 12.85
RN
As at April 01,2017 o
pal O, Current ;a:‘: 91-180dnys  181-360days > 360days Total
ECL Rates 0% [++73 % 0% 100.0%
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default * - 0.02 - - 57.40 57.42
ECL - Simplified approach - - - - 57.40 57.40
Net carrylng amount - 0,02 - - - 0,02

Foitaerls

*ineindes receivables from stock exchanges / clearing honse. The Campany has no history of defaults and expecis no defeeult on these receivables, accordingly ro
allowance for ECL has been recognised on these receivables.




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Currency:Indian rupees in million})

Asat As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 April 01, 2017
12. Loans {at amortised cost) o
Term Loans; Ce
Corporate credit - - . 19,733.51 27,000.13 14,468.66
Retail credit ©t o 5,308.69 1,821.98 112,79
Total gross ) '2_5,042.21} 28,822.11 14,581.45
Less: Impairment loss allowance C L (@81.65) (844.68) (217.78)
(Refer note 12.4} S
Tatal net o .24,560.55 27,977.43 14,363.67
Collateral : '
Secured by
Secured by tangible assets (property including land & _ e
building) S 12,67639 15,182.08 5,911.59
Secured by inventories, unlisted securities, project receivables Sy T
& other marketable securities . o 9,688;81 13.101.19 6.030.49
Unsecured Sl 2,676.94 538.84 2,639.37
Total gross < 25,042.20 28,822.11 14,581.45
Less: Impairment loss allowance e -:(481.6_5) (844.68) (217.78)
(Refer note 12.4) EEE T R
Total net C . .24,560.55 27,977.43 14,363.67
Loans in India _ ‘_ .
Public sector S e - -
Others 7L 2504220 28,822.11 14,581.45
‘Fotal gross S 25,842.20 28,822.11 14,581.45
Less: Impainment loss allowance : . (481.65) (844.68) (217.78)
(Refer note [2.4) . : .
Total net 24,560.55 2797743 14,363.67
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13.

Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Currency:Indian rupees in million)

Investments

I3.A Summary of Investments

As ot March 31, 2019 At foir value At cost
" Deslgnated at (subsidiaries,
At ::::g;m Through OCE | Through P&L falr value siu(';,tf;i) associafes, and (7]"1;‘;:’1"" 6
(3] 3 through Profit joint ventures)
or loss (4) (6)
Equity instruments - - 6.58 . 6.58 590.14 596.72
Prefercnce Shares - - w27 - 371.27 - 37.27
Security receipts - - 845.69 - 845.69 - 845.69
{Units of ATF - - 290.68 - 290.68 - 290.68
Units of venture fund - - 91.65 - 9L.65 - 91.65
TOTAL - Gross (A) - - 1,271.87 - 1,271.87 590.14 1,862.01
i) Investments outside India . - . - - - .
{ii} Investment in India - - 1,271.87 - 1,271.87 590.14 1,862.01
Total {B) - - 1,271.87 - 1,271.87 590.14 1,862.01
Less: Allownace for impairment {C) - - - - - - -
Total Net (A-C) - - 1,271.87 - 1,271.87 59014 1,862.01
As at March 31, 2018 At fair value At cost
Designated ot (subsidiaries,
At .;\;u:{lt;ﬂd Through OCI | Through P&IL. fair value sil;bzf;:;) associntes, and (1)=.f(°1$‘.‘tv+6)
(¥4 3 through Profit folnt veniures)
or loss {4} (6)
Equity instruments - - 3.63 - 3.63 590.14 593.77
Preference Shares - - 25.69 . 25.69 25.69
Security receipls - - 3,692.00 - 3,692.00 - 3,692.00
Units of AIF - - 223,67 - 223.67 - 223.67
Units of venture fund - - 82.37 - $2.37 - 82,37
TOTAL - Gross (A) - - 4,027.36 - 4,027.36 590.14 4,617.50
(i} Investments oniside India . - - - - - - -
(if) Invesiment in India - - 4,027.36 - 4,027.36 590,14 4,617.50
Total (B) - - 4,027.36 - 4,021.36 590.14 4,617.50
Less: Allowance for impaiment (C) - - - - - - -
‘Fotal Net (A-C) - - 4,027,36 - 4.027.36 590.14 4,617.50
As at April 01, 2017 At fair value Af cost
Designated at (substdiaries,
At ‘::f(’g“d Through OCK | Through P&L | fairvalue | i“;’f;:n assocates, and m_“}““
(2) @ thraugh Proflt Joint veaturesy | (17 {546
or loss (4) (03]
Equity instrumenis - - 811.43 - 811.43 590.14 1,401.57
Preference Shares (refer note 1 below) 66.67 - 25,69 - 25.69 - 92.36
Security receipts - - 2,173.04 - 2,173.04 - 2,173.04
Units of AIF - - 29.16 - 29.16 - 29.16
Units of venture fund - - 52.75 52.75 52,15
Warrants - - 11.49 11.49 PL49
Units of mututal fund - - 98.66 98.66 98.66
TOTAL - Gross {A)} 66.67 - 3,202.22 - 320222 590.14 3,859.03
{i) Investments outside India - - - - - 580.14 590.14
{ii) Investment in India 66.67 - 3,202.22 - 3,202.22 - 3,268.89
Total (B) 66.67 - 3,202.22 - 3202.22 590.14 3,859.03
Less: Allowance for impairment {C) - - - - . . .
Total Net {A-C) 66.67 - 3,202.22 - 32002 590.14 3,859.03

Notes:

1) No ECL is provided en the above preference shares, as they are issued by the same group company,
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Edeclweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yeor ended March 31, 2019

{Cumrency:indian rupecs in mitlion)
13, [Investmonts feontinvad)

13.B Scrip wise details of Investments

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 3[. 2018 As at April 01, 2017
Fare y
Value Quantity | Amount FMR\; aluc Quantity Amopunt Face Value Quantity Amount
Rs) : . o (Rs.} (Rs)
Equity Instruments (Fully paid up ) Cl
At fair vaiue through profit and loss account
Quoted
Gail {Indin) Limiled - - 10 407,333 153.54
BSE Limited - - - - - - 1 298,000 281,34
Unguoted : : Co
‘Tamilwad Mercantilo Bank Limited 190 . 36,071 6,58 1 36,072 363 1] 36,072 363
The Catholic Syrian Bank Limiwcd e - - 10 1,013,452 216,78
Vini Coametics Private Limited - . 1o 51,969 26.14
Telal (4} 6.58 3.63 81143
Equity Instruments (Fully paid up)
At Cost S
Associate Companies R D
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited S 1D 3,000,000 164,00 10 3,000,000 264.00 [14] 3,000,000 264.00
Edel Asset R ruttion Cc Litnited “10| 15,254,550 3614 10 15,254,550 326.14 10 15,254,550 326.14
Total (8} D A _ S50.4 - - 300,14 - A 590,14
Prefevence Shares (Fully pald up) 7 L
At fair value through profit and fess accouns o e o
Zero coupon Series D noncumulative compulsorily - 7,664 5219 3127 7,664 5219 25.69 7,664 5219 25,69
convertible preference sharcs of Bright Lifecare - o
Private Limited '
At Amortised Cost ,
11% Non Cymulative Optionally convertible - - 10 374,000 &6.67
Prefi shares of Edelwoiss Broking Limited S
Total (C) 3727 2569 92,35
Scesuritles Receipts Ny
At fair value through proflt and less accoumt -
EARC Trust 5C3 - - 1,600 218,500 0.22
EARC Trus18C 6 - 1,600 213,500 88.08 1,000 218,500 88.08
BARC Trust SC 43 - 1,000 54,000 27.00 1,000 54,000 40.50
EARC Trust SC 55 S 1,000 46,800 23.40 1,800 46,800 3510
EARC Trust SC 57 - - 1,000 72,250 80.36
EARC Trust SC 109 - 1,000 324 900 662.71 1,6 633,500 63038
EARC Trust §C2 112 R T Co - 1,000 296,000 273,78 1,000 141,000 304,78
EARC Trust 5C 177 LO0D| - 124,750 12241 5,000 124,750 119.82 1 00 124,750 115,74
EARC Trust 3C 245 R B - 1,000 540,940 448.36 1,000 255,000 467,76
EARC Trust 8C 220 [N B L= £,000 255,000 19125 1,000 534,650 155.00
EARC Trust 8C 262 - Series | 1800f - : 263,500 291.68 1,000 374,000 231.78 -
EARC Trust 8C 297 - Series | 1 L,A00 331,820 35856 1,006 805914 914,79 -
EARC Trust 8C 327 - Series [ N R . 1,000 642855 642,86 -
EARC Trust SC 337 1,008 90,567 | - 5193 - -
EARC Trust 5C 340 N e 095 - -
EARC SAF -3 Trust - Series 1 1,008 19,500 T 1252 1,000 19,560 20.01 1,600 19,000 22.42
Edelweiss ARF-] Trust Scheme-1 S S - 1,000 36,728 1349 1,000 56,728 3524
Edelweiss ARF.I Trust Scheme.2 1,000 1530 .53 1,000 31324 4.56 1,000 3L 6.35
Edelweiss ARF-I Trust Scheme-3 1,000 T 48 004 1,000 43,850 0.04 1,000 43,399 0.04
Edelweiss ARF-1 Trust Scheme-4 1,600 30 0403 1,000 32,679 0.03 1,000 32,67% 0.03
Edelweiss ARF.I Trust Scheme.5 1,000 .40 0.04 1,000 35370 004 1,600 35,750 0.04
"Total (D) B45.69 3.692.00 2.173.04
Units of AIF .
At fair value through profit and less acconnr Lo : o
Edelwsiss Private Equity Tech fund 100,000 568.94 BO41| 100,000 363.04 62,121 100,600 291.60 29.16
Edclweiss Value and Growth Fund - 100000f - 1852358 1027 100000 1,592.65 I6E.35 - - -
Total (B} - 29058 221.67 29.16
Units of venture fund C o
At fair value through profit and loss account I e B
KAE Capital Fund {India) 100,000 - 50 A4 | 100,000 S0.00 29491 100,000 50.00 6,23
KAE Capital Fuid 1f (India) 100,000 650 60217 100,000 43333 5288 | 100,000 41133 46,52
Total (F) I 91.65 81,37 52.75
Others - Warrants N
At fatr value through profit and loss acconnt
Kompass Capital Advisors Private Limited, - - 100 50,000 5.00
AT Invofin India Pvt. L1d. {Rs 2.5 pald up) , - 19 320,000 - 1] 320,000 -
Bharti Shipyard Limited (Rs 5.5 paid up} 18 1,647,313 - 16 2647313 - 190 2,647,313 6.49
Total (G) - - 11,49
Mutual Funds '
At fair value through profit and loss accoun
Reliange Money Manager Fund - Direct - Growth - - 1,000 34,927 98.06
Total {H) - - 98,66
Toral (A+8-C+D+EAF+G+H) 1&1.01 4,617.50 31.859.03
gL
W Falr value measurement for valuati hodologics for invest A o
f;( \
A J3
"'f‘:-,\-vu/qm
Sk k
R




E.delweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Currency:Indian rupees in miilion)

14,

i5.

16.

Other financial asscts

Margin placed with broker (refer note 9.4)
Accrued interest on margin

Dividend receivable

Other receivables

Deposits- others

Current tax assets (net)

Advance income taxes

(Net of provision for tax Rs. 251,69 million, March 31, 2018 Rs. 357.1! miilion

and Apnil 1, 2017 Rs. 251.92 million)

Deferred tax assets (net}

Deferred tax assets

Loans
Provision for expected credit loss

Investmen{s and other financial instruments
Long term capital loss
Unrealised loss on derivative transactions
Unrealised loss on investments

Employee beacfit ohligations .

Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Fair valuation of employce stock options

Borrowings
Adjustment of effective interest rate on borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and intangibles

Difference between book and tax deprecintion

Investments and other financinl instruments
Unrealised gain on derivative transactions
Unrealised gain on investments

Borrowings
Adjustment of effective interest rate on Bomrowings

Others

" Asat As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31,201 8 April 01, 2017
66634 1933 396.26
© LR - .
S - 46.94
. - 16.46
- - 1.00
668.12 19.33 460.66
- '147.32 146.82 106.05
14132 146,82 106.05
16831 303.74 182.69
C 2139 17.39 -
080 5.93 11.99
6.4 36.93 11.38
1 sm 082 3270
; 8.54 2.42
6683 64.69 -
268.28 438.04 24118
031 0.07 0.08
2236 0.68 9,89
13153 108.17 157.20
- - 22.11
- 42.15 -
154,06 151.07 189.28
114.22 286.97 51.90
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Edciweiss Finvest Private Limited
Natee to the financin] statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Currency:Indian rupees in million)

Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
18. Other non-financisl nssets .
(Unsecured considered good, untess stated otherwise)
Enput tax credit 100,20 55.69 7.97
Prepaid expenses . 050 0.50 1.76
Vendor Advances - D.8s 2.70 6.32
Advences recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received . e - 0.01
Advances to employees o " 8.01 .01 0.01
Others . . - - 1.03
101,56 58.90 17.10
19. Trade Payables
Payable to : , ) :
Trade payables to non-related parties - B444 45.60 49.50
(includes sundry credifors, provision for expenses,customer payables o
and net payable for setiement to clearing house ) R
Trade payables to related parties 23945 299.88 24.85
323.89 345.54 74,35
L

19,A Detaiis of dues to micro and small enterprises

Trade Payables includes Rs.Nil (March 31, 2018; RaNit; March 31, 2617: Rs Nif) payable lo “Supplicrs” registered under the Micre, Small and
Medium Enterprises Dovelopment Act, 2006. No interest has heen paid £ is payable by the Company during the year to “Suppliers” regisiered under
this act. The aforementioncd is bascd on the responses received by the Company to its inguiries with supplicrs with regard to applicability under the
said Act. .

20, Dcbt sccurities

At amortised cost
(Refer note 20.A and 20.B)
Secured
Non-convertible redeemable debentures .
Privately placed . T 348774 347551 1,823,441
Benchmark linked debentures .- 15,798.30 12,373.73 10,282.32
Unsecured
Non-convertible redecmable debentures
Privately placed - - - - 291.66
Renchmark linked debentures C7 2,989,712 2,121.52 548.25
L 2L275.16 19,970.76 12,045,64
Debt Securities in India L 22757 17,970.76 12,945.64

Debt Securities outside India - - -

22,275.76 17,970.76 12,945.64




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Nates to the financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{Currency:Indian rupces in million)

20 Debi securities (continucd)
20.A  Detalls of debt securites :
Secured non-convertible vedeemable debenivres
Privately placed:
Privately placed debentures are secured by charge on immovable property and foating charge on receivables from financing business, sceurities held for
teading.
Benchmark lnked dehentures

Benchmark linked debentures nre secused by way of 8 pari pussa mortgage and charge over the merigage premises, a charge on the roccivables frarm
Financing business ond securities held for rading ard corporate gu: fram the uiti holding

1y

In case of benchmark finked det the i tate is linked to the pecformance of the underlying indices and is Ructuating in nature.
Certain benchmark finked det hove p elause for an carly redemption event which is automaticatly triggered on the achicvement of pre determined
benchanark index leved (83,
20,.B  Maturity profile and rate of interest of debf securitics are sct out below:
Secured Beachmark Liaked D U 1] b Rk Linked B 53
Maturity Moath March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2047 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Apr-2017 - - £9.50 - - -
May-2017 - - 106,00 - - -
Jun-2817 - - 18.00 - - -
Jub2017 - - 2300 - - -
Aug-2H7 - - 108.60 - - -
Sep-2017 - - 24300 . - -
Oct-2017 - - 670,20 - - -
Nov=-2017 - - 61.50 - - -
Dec-2017 - - 13000 - - -
Jan-2018 - - 38019 - - -
Feh-2018 - - 12000 - - .
Mar-2018 - - 1.816.50 - - -
Apr-308 - 91.00 31.00 - - -
May-2018 - 36330 56330 . - -
Jun-2018 . 264.00 264.00 - - -
Jul-2018 - 549.00 474.00 . - -
Aup-2013 - 2,344.30 11428 - 20000 -
Sep-2018 - 40530 14250 - 15.00 -
Oct-2018 - §,008.00 98.00 - - -
Nov-2018 - 8.50 38.50 - - -
Dec-2018 - 33500 31500 - - -
lan-2019 - [40,20 140,20 - - -
Feb-2019 - 47.50 4750 - - -
Mar-2019 . 337.00 223.00 . - -
Apr-2019 95.60 47.10 47,10 - - -
May-2019 652.90 633.10 658.10 - - -
Jun2019 103.60 113.0D H3.60 - - -
Dal-2019 287.60 293.00 234.50 - - -
Aup-2019% 22730 230,10 4266 10.00 i0.00 -
Sep-2019 T24.70 13490 59.90 1009 10.00 -
Qet-20t9 3,060.39 27.00 5700 - - -
Nov-2019 3b.00 3600 30.00 - . -
Jan-2020 177.50 130.30 180.50 - - -
Feh-2020 129.50 132.08 132.00 . - -
Mar-2020 T80 199,19 199.10 50.00 50,00 3060
Ap-2020 - - 1000 - - -
May-2020 H9.00 (1900 119.00 - - -
Jun-2020 544,40 546,40 544.40 - - -
Jul2020 108538 446.50 364.00 - - -
Aug-20X0 108.09 108.00 10,08 330.00 IR0.00 380.00
Sep-2020 325.50 32550 £0.08 £6.00 10.00 -
Oct-2020 45,50 150 - 32.50 1250 -
Nov-2020 - - - 10.00 £0.00 -
Dec-2020 10.00 1200 - 2000 2000 -
Jan-2021 - 10,00 - - , B -
Jul-2021 434,90 94,50 - - - -
Sep-2021 874,00 21250 50.00 - - .
Oc1-2021 - - . 280060 - “
Dec-2021 12.50 - . - - -
Jan-2022 27.50 15.00 15.00 28,50 2850 28.50
Feb-2022 760.80 650.30 17.50 £0.00 10.08 .00
Mar-2022 L143.00 300 300 - . .
May-2022 271,50 400 " - - -
Jun-2022 2,348.60 - - - - -
Aug-2022 47.90 - - - . -
Sep-202% 10.00 - - - . -
Mar-2024 300.00 300.00 300.00 - - -
Jun-2027 17040 170,00 - - - -
Jan-2027 - - - 40.00 4060
. Jan-2028 - - - 1.924.00 1,235.00
14,902,50 t£,558.10 9,695.00 2,805.00 205100
J e Assotisted aceruals * 895.80 81563 38732 184.72 70,52
Total 15,798.30 '2_;,323-73 10,28232 2.93_9.71 212152




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes fo the financial statements for the year ¢nded March 31, 2019
{Curreney:Indian rupees in mitlion}

20. Debtscourities (continued)

20.B  Maturity profile and rate of Interest of debt securltles arc sct ont blaw:

Sccured non covertible detentures Unsectired non covertiblo dehentures
Maturity Month Ampunt outsizeding us at Amount outstandisg as at
March 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2038 March 31,2017 Mareh 31,2019 March 31,2018 March 31, 2617
Rsto of interest 5.10% pg. 9.50% p.o. 10.65% pa. - - 17.00% pa,
Dec-2017 - - - - - 268.87
Mar-201B - - t.500.00 - - -
Apr-2019 3,500.00 3,500.00 - . - .
3,50000 3,500.00 1,50000 - . 26887
Associated zccruals * {12.26) {24.4%) 314l - - prii]
Tolal 34874 347551 1,823.41 = - 291.66
— sttt ECEETINT My

* Assaciated accruals include interest accrued & offective interest rate amortisation, Intesest accrued but not due Is payzble an next interest payment date for respective
ISINs




Edelwelss Finvest Private Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended Morch 31, 2019
{Cucrency:Indian rupees In million)

Asat Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2019 iarch 3t 2088 Aprit 01, 2017
21. Borrowings othier than Debt Securlies”
At amoriised cost
Term loan from bank . 3478 424,63 -
(First Pari Passu charge on the aseels of the Compuony
which insludes trade and olher receivables, loans and cash and
cash cquivalents with Letter of Comfon)
(Refer pote 21.A)
seenred o
Inter corporate loan from others .- 4o 1221 201
(Repayable on demand, carry interest at 5.5% p.a., Morch 31, :
2018 5.5% p.a., Marchi 31, 2017 3.5% pa.)
Loan and advances from related parties - 7.761.96 -
[Repayable on demand, carry intcrest at 10% p.a. {Previous
year 9% p.aJ)] .
13718 2.198.80 12.01
Borrowings in India <A E 8,198.80 12.01
Borrowinps outside India L . -
33718 4,195.80 12.01

21.A Details of Borrowings other than Debt Securities

Lozu from basks - Amount outstanding as at

Maturity Manth -
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rate of interest 9.70% pa. 8.55% pun. n
Jun-2018 - 25.00 : -
Sep-2018 - 25.00 -
Drc-2018 - 2500 -
Mar-2019 - 3500 -
Jun-2019 25.00 25,00 -
Scp-2019 . 25.00 25.00 -
Dee2019 25.00 25.00 -
Mar-2010 25.00 25.00 -
Jun-2020 25.60 .00 -
Sep-2020 3580 25.00 -
Dee-2020 2500 25.00 -
Mar-2021 2500 2500 -
Jun-2021 2500 2500 .
Sep-2021 2560 25.00 -
Dec-2021 . 2500 2500 -
Jun-2022 25.40 2500 -
Mar-2022 2580 25.00 -
32500 425.00 .
Associated aceruals * (0.22) {8.37) -
Total 324.78 424,63 -

Sat
* Associated accruals include interest actred & effective interest rate amortisatfon. Enterest acerued but not due is payable on nost inferest paymeat




Edclweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial staternents for the yenr ended March 31, 2019

(Currency:Indisn rupees in million)

Az at Asat As at
March 31, 2019 Morch 31, 2018 April 01,2017
22, Suboerdinated Lisblitics L
At amoriised cost
(Refer note 22.4}
Unsecured
Subordinated debentures : Lo g
Privately placed redeemable non-converiible debentures o 16187 16125 16112
161.17 161.26 [61.12
Subordizted liabilities in India ) - ISLYIT 161.26 161.12
Subordiated liabilities outside India e - -
161.17 161.26 161.12

22.A Maturity profile and rate of interest of subordinated Habilitles are set out below:

Unsecured subordinated liabilittes - Interest Rate FLM % pa.

Maturity Monih Amaount outstanding as at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Jul-2025 S 150 150.00 £50.00
- 156,00 150.00 150,00
Add: interest accrued® T 11.26 11.12
Total s 161,17 161.26 161.12

* Interest accrued but not due is payable on next inlerest payment date.
23. Other financial liabllities

Accrued salaries and benefits © 2008 16.54 51.74

Book overdrafl : S -:_2.69 - 691
278 1654 5865

24, Current tax liahilities (net)

Provision for texation L 26393 252.98 4259
{Net of advance tax Rs. 1,306.23, March 3{, 2018 Rs, 672.51 million, ’ o
April 01, 2017 Rs. 577.28 million}

- 163.93 22.98 42,59
25. Provisions
Provision for employes benefils S
Gratuity (Refer note 37.4) _ . 1266 211 0.85
Compensaled leave absences 124 0.25 0.83
' - 14.90 2.36 1.68
A - .
26, Othetr non<NHinancial liabilities
Statutory liabilities* . T 3694 18.17 4.57
Qthers - 513 048 048
42.07 18.65 505

* Inclides withhelding taxes, profession tax and other statutory dies payables




Edclweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019

{Currency:Indian rupees in million)

As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018 As al April 01, 2017
No of shares - Amount Mo of sharcs Amount No of shares Amount
17, Equity share copltal S -
Authorised : ST '
Equily Shares of Rs, 10 each - 35000000 - . - - 35000 35,000,000 350.00 11,560,000 115.00
Preference Shares of Rs.10 cach ST s e e - - 23,500,000 23500
: 35"950,003 L - 350.00 35.000&000 350.00 35,000,000 350.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up: Ce T T ;
Equity Shares of Rs.10 cach '7—3.3,325.375 . 33326 33,325,875 333.26 2,805,998 23,06
33325875 . 0 33336 33,325,875 333,26 2,805,998 28.06
- EE——————y
27.A Reconcliation of number of shares o .
- As st March 31, 2019 ‘; As ol March 31, 2018 As at April 01,2417
_Noofshares -~ Amount No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year U aapassns 0 33326 2,805,998 28.06 2,305,998 28.06
Shares issued during the year I 30,519,877 305.20 - .
OQutstanding at the end of the year . 33325875 C 33336 33,325,875 333.26 2,805,998 28.06
Notes:

During the firancial year 2017-18 the Company has issued 8,279,275 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs.18 each at o premium of Rs 168,35 each aggregating to Rs. 1,476.61 million
to Edelweiss Finoncial Services Limited as part of consideration for acquisition of lending & investment business of Edelweiss Finunce & fnvestments Limited (vefer note 51.1)

During the financial year 2017-18, the Company has issued 22,240,602 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs.10 enach at par aggregaling to Rs. 22241 million for conversion of
preference shares in to equity.

27.B Terms/rights attached to equity shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. [0/-. Each holder of equity shares is eatitled to one vole per share held.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders wifl be entilled Lo receive (he remaining assets of the Company, after disiribution of all preferential amounts, if
any, in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

27.C Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company snd/or thelr subsidiarles/associates

. AsatMarch3l, 2019 . As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01,2007
“Noofshares' ' %bholding =~ MNoofshares % holding No of shares % holding
Ultimate Holding company B
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited CUUBATNS  MEA% 8,279,275 24.84% - -
Holding corapaay R S
ECap Equities Limited CRAST 6T39% 22,459,720 61.39% 1,700,812 60.61%
Fellow subsidiary company - B T A
Edelweiss Securities Limited U503 v aTa% | 1,259,394 3.78% 1,105,186 39.39%
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services R R P
Limited {Formely known as Edelweiss U1L39486 0 398% © 1,327,486 3.98% - .
Commodities Services Limited) R R
_ 33325875 100.00% 33325875 100.00% 2,805,898 100.00%

27D Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggrogate shares in the Company

_AsatMarch 31,2019~ As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
No of shaves % holding No of shares % holding Na of shares % holding
ECap Equities Limited . 22,459,720 6139% 22,459,720 67.39% 1,700,812 60.61%
Edelweiss Financiol Services Limited SO U82T9215 - 24.84% 8,279,275 24.84% - -
Edelweiss Securities Limited B : - - 1,105,186 39.39%
36,738,995 92.24% 30,738,995 97.24% 2,805,998 100.00% |

2%.E There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contraets / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment,
‘w o lLIBO
ry SLZNY g

(/c,{%?’ \6,3\




Edeclweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year endad March 31, 2019

(Currency:Indian rupees in mitlion)

28. Instruments coticcly equity in nature

As st March 31, 2019 : As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01,2017
-Noofshares - -Amopunt Neo of shares Amount No of shares Amaunt
Issuied, Subseribed aid Paid up: - S
Compulsorily convertible non- cumulative
preference shares R
a) Serics A . . - - 333,700 334
b} Scries B . . - - 11,345,363 113,45
c) Series C - i - - - 10,561,539 105.62
- . - - - 22,240,602 22141

28.A Reconciltation ¢f number of sharcs
a)  0.01% Compulsorily convertible non- cumuistlve preference shares - Series A

As at Mm‘gh 31,2018 . As at March 31, 2018 Asal April 01,2017
No of shares Amoont Noof shares Amount No of shares Amguni
Ouistonding at the beginning of the year e 333,700 3.34 800,000 8.00
Less: Shares cancelled on account of SR TP
demerger (Refer note 51.4) B T - - 466,300 4.66
Less; Shares converled into equity shares  * R LR 333,700 3.34
Qutstanding at the end of the year R . - - 333,700 3.34

b) 0.01% Compulsorily convertible non- cumulative preferonce shares - Serles B

* "AsatMarch31,2009 As at March 31, 2018 Asat April 01, 2017
Noofshares =~ Amount No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Cuistanding at the beginning of the year e SR TR 11,345,363 113.45 11,345,363 11345
Less: Shares converled into equity shares T Do 11,345,363 11345 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year P e S - - 11,345,363 11345
) 0.01% Compulsorily convertible non- cumulative preference shares - Scries C
: :M=|Marqh31;29£9 ‘ As at March 31, 2018 As al April 01, 2047
Noofsheres =~ Amount No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Outstanding st the beginning of the year P PR 10,564,539 105.62 10,561,539 105.62
Less: Shares converted into equity shares | R 10,561,539 105.62 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year - . - - - 10,561,539 105.62

28.B Termyirights altached fo preference shares :

a) Termsirights attached to 0.01% Compulsorily convertible non- cumulative preference shares - Series A (CCPS -A)

The tenure of CCPS-A was upto 3t December 2017, With the required consent of the CCPS-A holders, the term of issue of the CCP'S-A hod been changed and accordingly the
halders of CCPS-A ¢an convert any or all the CCPS-A held by them into 1 equity share of the Company of Rs.10 each at par. All the CCPS-A outstanding as on 31 December 2017
have been converted into equity shares.

b) Terms/rights sttacked to 0.01% Compulsorily convertible non- cumulative preference shares - Series B (CCPS - B)

The tenure of CCPS-B was upto 31 December 2017. During the term of the CCPS-B, the holder can convert any or all the CCPS-B held by them into [ equity share of the Company
of Rs. 10 each at face value. All the CCP'S-B outstanding as on 31 Decomber 2017 have been converted into equity shares.

¢) Terms/rights attached to 8.01% Compulsorily convertible non- cumalative preference shares - Series C (CCPS - C)
The tenure of CCPS-C was upto 31 March 2018, During the term of the CCPS-C, the holder can convert any or sl the CCPS-C held by them into 1 cquity shave of the Company of
Rs. 10 each at face value, All the CCPS-C owistanding as on 31 March 2018 have been converted into equity shares,

28.C Detalls of preference sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

- As at March 31, 2019 . As at March 31, 2018 As at Aprit 01,2017
Noofsharcs . % helding In the No of shares % holding in the No of shares % holding in the
o class class class

a) 0.01% Compulsorily convertible non- cumulative preference shares - Series A

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services . I I
Limited e e . - - 179,492 5379

Edetweiss Securities Limited i - ) . - - 154,208 46.21
- - - - 333,700 160.00

b} 0.81% Compalsorlly convertible non- cumulative preference shares - Serles B
ECap Equitics Limited - : - - - 11,345,363 100,00
) - ) - - - F1,345,363 106,00

9,413,545 89.13
1,147,994 10.87
10,561,539 100.00




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 201%

{Currency:Indian rupees in million)

29, Other Equity

a. Capital redemption reserve
b. Securities premium reserve
¢. Siatutory reserve

d. Retained camings

e. Deemed capilal contribution - Equity -

f. Share capital pending allotment on account of merger (refer note 51.1)

29.A Nature and purpose of Reserves

a. Cabital redemption reserve

" Asat

Asat Asat

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
8434 84.34 84.34

. 3,915.88 3,752.55 3,743.44
-1,142.60 $01.00 534.56
4,686.64 3,329.99 2,226.42

225 225 0.68

- - 82,79

-~ 9,831.71 7,970.13 6,672.23

The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,

2013,

b. Sccurities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve con be utilised only for limited purposes such as
issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

¢. Statutory reserve

Reserve created under 45-IC(1) in The Resarve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less (han twenty per cent of its net profit every year as

disclosed in the profit and loss account end before any dividend is declared.

d. Retained carnings

Retained eamings comprises of the Company's undistributed eamings after taxes.

e. Deemed capifal confribution - Equity

Deemed capital contribtion relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by the parent company under its employee share

option plan.

f. Share capital pending allotment on account of merger

Shares allotted to the equily shareholders of Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited pursuant to the merger of its lending and investment

business with the Company {refer note 51.1).




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial séatements for the year ended March 31, 2012

{Cumrency:Indian rupees in million)

29.8 Movement in other equity

a. Capital redemption reserve
Opening balance
Add : Additions during the year

b. Sccurities premium reserve

Opening balance R
Add : Premium Received on issue of Debentures
Add : Addition on account of merger (Refer note 51.1)
Less: Reduction on account of cancelfation of preference shares
acquired due to merger (Refer note 51.1)

[ Statutéry reserve

Opening halance
Add : Reserve created for the year

d. Retained earnings

Opcening balance
Add: Profit for the year
Less/Add : Other comprehensive income
Less/Add : Income tax effect of ESOPs
Add/Less : Deemed distribution during the year
Add: Impact on first time adoption of Ind AS
Add : Profit on account of merging business from the appointed date
{refer note 51.1)

Amount available for appropriation
Appropriations:
Transfer to statutory reserve

e. Decmed capital contribution - Equity

Opcning balance
Add : ESOPs charged during the year

f. Share capital pending allotment on Account of merger

Opening balance
Add: Coensideration payable on merger (refer note 51.1)
Less: Issue of equity shares

Total = (a+b+o+d+et)

Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
8434 84,34 84.34
84.34 84.34 84.34
.. B,752.55 3,743.44 2,461.53
16333 9.11 -
S . 1,393.82
. . (111.91)
3,915.88 3,752.55 3,743.44
- 30100 534.56 441.94
- 341.60 266.44 92.62
1,142.60 801.00 534.56
Gt 3329.99 2,226.42 1,600,93
. 1,708.02 1,063.84 463.10
T (1.23) 0.05 -
(®.54) 6.12 242
. 300.00 (327.81)
- - 204.39
- - 286.01
502824 3,596.43 2,319.04
" (341.660) (266.44) (92.62)
~(341.60) (266.44) (92.62)
4,686.64 3,329.99 2.226.42
225 0.68 .
- 1.57 0.68
2.25 2.5 0.68
- 82,79 .
- . 32.79
. (82.79) -
. - 82.79
9,831.71 7,970.13 6,672.23




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
_ Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Currency-Indian rupees in million)

38, Interest Income

on financial assets measured at amortiscd cost
Tnterest on loans
Interest on fixed deposits with banks
Interest income on preference shares
QOther interest Income
On margin with hrokers
Qn others

on financial assefs messured at fair value through profit or loss
interest income on debt securities

31, Dividend Income

-

Dividend on securities held for treding
Dividend on investment

32. Feeincome

Processing and other fees

33. Net gain on fair value changes (including treasury income)

Net gain/ (loss) on financial insteuments at fair vaiue through profit or loss
On investments and securities held for trading
On derivatives financial instrument
On security receipts

Fair value changes
Realised
Unrealised

34. Other income

Miscellaneous income

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
465455 3,170.81
81 4.05
- 7.33
186 3.46
s 0.25
40.49 26.39
4,702.61 3.212.29
170,41 758.16
007 400
170,18 762.16
11938 84.75
119.39 84.75
L 613 (789.25)
a4 (49.65)
379.66 654.06
265.60 (184.84)
97.87 741.15
167.73 {925.99)
7€5.60 (184.84)

- 001 -

0.01




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes fa the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Cuwrency:Indian rupees in million} For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

35, Finance costs
On financial lizbilitics measured at amortised cost

Litterest on horrowings other than debt securities R © 456,46 151.96

Interest on debt securities .+ 1,633.64 1,171.38
Interest on subordinated liabilities R - 1645 16.64
Other finance cost and bank charges ST 15746 124.51

2,264.01 1,504.4%

36. Impairment on financizl instruments

On financial instruments measured st amortised cost

Expected credit loss : L ;-
Loans (including undrawn commitments) ST 12052 917.41
Trade receivables . B C '{0:93) 0.02
119.59 91743

37. Employce benefits expense

Salaries and wages (vgfer note 38.D) R 117 7 33.25
Contribution 1o provident and other {unds RSUEE 1 1 0.95
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) (refer note below) -3 1.57
Staff welfare expenses Lo em 0.33
112.76 36.10

Notes:
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited ("EFSL") the holding Company has granted an ESOP option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that

would vest in a graded manner to Company’s employees. Based on group policy / amrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such
stock options, Company has accepled such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost.

37.A Employee Benefits

&) Defined contribution plan - Provident funds
In accordance with Employecs' Provident Fund and Miscellancous Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company are entitled to receive
benefits under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which, both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a
determined rate, These contributions are made (o a recognized provident fund administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The
employees contribute 12% of their basic salary and the Company contributes an equal amount.

The Company recognised Rs. 3.56 million (Previous year : Rs. 8.55 million) for provident fund and other contributions in the Statement of
profit and loss.

The Supreme Court has recently, delivered its ruling on the composition of basic wages for the purposes of deduction and contribution to the
Employees Provident and Pension funds. The company, in the interest of its employees, awaits clarity on the complexities revolving around
the application of the seid order, the ambiguity reflecied by the divergent views of legal experts and the response/direction {rom the
authorities, including on representations made by an industry association in this regard.

b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a non-contributory defined benefit asrangement
providing lump-sum gratuity benefits expressed in terms of final monthly salary and year of service, covering all employess. The plan
provides & lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or lermination of employment in accordance with the rules laid down in the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2019
The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related cusrent service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
.j’} rojected Unit Credit Method.




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{Currency:Indian rupees in million)

37.A  Employee Benefits (continued)
b} Defined bencfit plan - Gratuity

Movement In defincd bencfit Habifity
The fotlowing table shows a reconciliation from the opening batances to the closing balances for defined benefit lability and its components:

Defined brenefit obligation

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Opening Batance S 3 0.85
Current service cost N . 0.2
Interest cost - 0.8 0.£3

4.70 1,19
Other comprehensive Income ;
Remeasurcment loss (gain):
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:

Experience R Wi o1
Financial assumptions 0.22 (0.07)
1.88 {0.08)
Others .
Transfer l/ (Out) - 6.69 1.00
Benefits paid . {0.62) -
Ciosing Balance oo 12,66 2.11

Components of defined benefit plan cost: )
For the year ended  For the yeur ended

Particulars . March 31, 2019 Munrch 31, 2018
Recognised In Statement of profit or loss :
Current service cost ) o 198 0.21
Interest cost - 0.64 0.13
Talgl 25 0.34
Recognised in other eomprehensive income o o
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/assel) © L.89 (0.08)
Total 1,89 {0.08)
Actuarial assumptions:
The following were the principal ial ptions at the reporting date;
As st Asat Asat

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Discount Rate 7.00% 1.30% 6.80%
Satary Growth Rate 7.00% T7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal/Attition Rate (based on catcpories) 13%-25% 13% - 25% 13%-25%
Interest Rate on Net DBO (% p.a.) 7.30% 6.80% T40%
Mortality Rale IALM 2012.14 TALM 260608 IALM 2006-08

(Ultimate} (Ullimate) {Ultimate)
Expected weighted average remaining working lives of employees 5 [ [
Noies:

a} The disconnt rate are based on the benclnrark ylelds available on Govermment Bonds at the veluation date with terms matching that of the liabifities.
b) The estimates of futnre salary increases tgkes inte acconnt the inflation, seniorlty, promotion and other relevant factors.

¢} Assumiptions regarding fiture moriality experience are set in accordance with the statistics published by the Life Insurance Corporation of India,

Sensitlvity analysis:

Reasonably possible chanpes at the reporting date to one of the relevan! actuarial assumptions, holding other assumplions constant, would have affected the defined henefit
obligation by the amounis shown below,

As at March 31, 2019 ’ - Asat March 31,2018
Increase - Decrease Increase Decrease
Salary Growth Rate {+/- 1%) . © 081 {04y 0.14 (0.13}
Discommt Rate (+/- 1%) A (Y R)) C 082 (0.13) 614
Withdraw] Rate (+/- 1%} {0.05) 0.05 - -

The above sensitivity analysis have been caleulaled fo show the movement in defined benefil obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other chunges in market
conditiens at the reporting date. In practice, gtenerally it does not occur, When we change one variable, it afTecls to others. In caleulating the sensitivity, project unit credit
method a1 the end of the reporting period has been applied.

¢} Compensated abscnces ¢ .
ny provides for accumulated compensated ahsences as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method based on actuarial valuation. The leave
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Notes to the financinl statemcnts for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Currency:indian rupees in millien)

38,

38A

8B

33.C

38.D

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Othor oxpenses
Adverlisement and business promotion 805 027
Audilors’ remuneration (refer nofe 38.4) 1.78 1.79
Commissicn and brokerage 3133 996
Communication 143 0.73
Directors' sitting fecs 0.51 0.26
Insurance - 0.02
Legal and professional fees 7538 E00.44
Printing and stationery 0.01 0.10
Raotes and taxes 3.66 597
Rent frefer note 38.C and 38.0) 893 1.37
Repairs and maintenance {refer note 38.0) 0.1t 047
Electricity charges (refer note 38.0) 0.89 0.64
Compauter software - 0.23 0.49
Corporate social responsibility -Donation (refer stote 38.8) - 500 -
Clearing & custodian charges .16 016
Rating support fees 0,18 0.21
Membership and subscription 0.02 010
QOffice expenses 5330 1522
RO Expenses 6,07 0.05
Seminar & Conference e 0.02
Goods & Service lax expenses I Jr By & (24.54)
Stamp duty 5.80) 1574
Travelling and conveyance 497 0.48
Miscellaneous expenses 1.5¢ 0.85
Housckeeping and security charges (refer nofe 38.0) .03 0.04
2i7.48 134.84
Auditors' remuncration:
As a Auditor -
Aundil fees - 136 0.50
Limited Review 0.39 0.88
Centification and Consultation - 012
Reimbursement of expenses 0,83 0.29
1.78 1.79
Details of CSR Expendituve:
Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company as pet the
provistons of Section 135 of Companics Act 2013, . -23.94 -
Amount Spent {paid’in cash) ) .
i) Constreetion/ acquisition of any assets ) : - -
ii) On purpose other than (i) above S 508 -
Amoutit Spent {yet to be paid in cash) . :
i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets - -
ii) On purpose other than (i) above - -
5.00 -
Amount paid to EdelGive Foundation 5.00 -
{refer note 45 related party disclosire) : :
Paid to external parties - -
5.00 -

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, Edelweiss group is conscious of ils
Corporate Social Responsibility and, had accordingly established a CSR prm, "EdelGive Foundation® in the year 2008, As
an amount of Rs. 225,19 mijlion (Previous year: Rs. 177.84 million) (representing more than 2% of the consolidated profit
of the group) was spent by the proup as a whole towards CSR activities during the year ended 3% March 2019, the
Company has not incurred the prescribed CSR expenditure on a standnlone basis during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Operating leases

The Company has not token premises on operating lease, Rental expenses for the year ended 31 March 2019 aggregated to
Rs. 8.93 million (Previous year: Rs. 1.37 mitlion) which has been included under the head other expenses — Rent in the
Statement of profit and Ioss are alfocations from the fellow subsidiaries,

Cast sharing
Edclweiss Financial Services Limited, being the holding company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like
Group mediclaim, insurance, renl, cleciricity charges etc. which is for the common benefit of itself and its cortain
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company. This cost so expended is reimbursed by the Company on the basis
of number of employees, lime spent by employecs of other companies, actual ideatifications elc. On the same lincs,
employees’ costs expended (if any) by the Company for the benefit of feltow subsidiaries is recovered by the Company,
Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 37 and 38 include reimbursements paid
and are net of reimbursements reecived based on the management’s best cstimate are Rs, 11,51 million (previous year Rs,
1,96 million).
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{Currency:indian rupees in miilion)

39, Income Tax

Component of income tax expenses

Current tax
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years
Deferred tax relating to temporary differences

Total tax charge for the year (refer note 39.4)

Current tax
Deferred tax (refer note 39.B)

39.A The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit / (1.oss) before taxes
Statutory Income Tax rate

Tax charge at statutory rate
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior year
Tax effect of :
Income / [tems not subject to tax or chargeable at lower tax rate
Dividend Income
Sale of non cument investments ~
Non deductible expenses
Effect of indexed cost being available as deduction
Others
Impact of tax rate changes (between two sccounting periods)

Impact of certain {tems being taxed at different rates - capitat gains

Others
Profit from EARC Trusts (taxed on realisation)

Current Tax Expenses Reported in Statement of Profit and Loss

Effective Income Tax Rate

For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 201¢ March 31, 2018
68012 374.84
U 9.95) 103.06
16487 (260.35)

"~ 835.04 217.55
£70.17 477.90

164.87 (260.35)

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
. 2,543.06 1,281.39
3494% 34.61%

S 88865 443.46
- Lp95) 103.06
(5947 (263.76)

. (6.98)

S (92.10)

- 8.16 3.20
69 8.87

- 12.70

075 9.10

83504 217.55
32.84% 16.98%
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Edeclweins Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{Currency:Indian rupees in million)

40.

41.

Earnings per Sharce

Basic carnings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit attribulable to equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number
of equily shares outstanding during the year.

Dilated carnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit atiributable to equity shareholders of the Company with the weighted average
number of equity shares outsianding during the period adjusted for assumed conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

For the year ended  for the yesr ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (A) 1,708.02 1,063.84

Weiphted average number of shares . .
- Number of eguity shares ontstanding at the beginning of the year - 33325875 2,805,998

- Number of equity shares issued during the year - 30,519,877
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 33,325,8'1’5 V 33,325,875
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duringthe (B} 7 "

year {based on the date of issue of shares) . 3},325,875 ) 11,258,656
Weighted average number of diluted equity shares outstanding during - : . :

the year {C) 33325815 .‘ 30,558,556
Adjusted net profit for diluted EPS : (D} - 1,708.02 7 1,063.84
Basic carnings per share {in rupces) (A/IBB) : o Sl.iS 94,49
Diluted eamings per share (in rupees) DIC) © 5138 34.81

The basic and diluted eamings per share are the same as there are no difutive/ potential equity shares issued or outstanding as at March 31, 2G19.
{Previcus year, dilution in camings per share is on account of compulserily convertible non-cumulative preference shares.

Contingent Liability & Commitment:
Contingent Liability

In the ordinary coursc of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such claims and
assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external lepal counsel, wherever necessary. The
Company records a liability for any claims where a potential Joss is probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its
financial statements, if maierial. For potential Josses that are considered possibie, but not probable, the Company provides disclosure in the
financial statemenis but does not record a liability in its accounts uniess the loss becomes probable.

The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings wifl not have s materially sdverse effect on the Company's financial position and
results of operations,

Details of contingent liability

Particulars - LAsat As at Asat

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 April §1,2017

Taxation matters of assessment year 20£4-15 in respeci of which [T
appeal is pending with tax authorities T 8838 46.38 -

‘The Company has received demand notices from tax authorities on account of disallowance of expenditure for caming exempt income under
Section 14A of Income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962. The company has filed appealls and is defending its
position. Based on the favoursble outcome in Appellate proceedings in the past and as advised by the fax advisers, company is reasonably
ceriain ubout sustaining its position in the pending cases, hence the possibility of outflow of resources embodying ceonomic benefits on (his
ground is remote” i

Commitment

To meet the financiel nceds of customers, the Company enters into various irrevocable commitments, which primarily consist of undrawn
commitment to lend.

Details of commitment
Particulars . -Asat Asat Asat
‘March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 April 1, 2087
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining o be exccuted on capital )
account (net of advances}) and not provided for D06 1.56 -
committed credit lines - 8,823.44 828.12 21294
ilities ot non-current investmends 233.87 269.84 154.51




Edclwelss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financlai statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019
(Currency:indion rupees in million)

42. Segment reporting
Primary Sepmont (Business segment)

The Company's busi is organised and 2 reviews the perft baged on the busi 8 15 foned below:
Segment Agtivitles covered
Capiut based business . Income from treosury operalions, income from investments and dividend income
Financing business Wholesale and retail fi
Income for each sepment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, asscts and fiabilities are cxtl}er spwﬁcaily Identified with individual sepments or have
been sllocated to segments on a systematic basis. Based on sucl: atlocalions, sep disel g to , resulls, assets and labllities hove been
prepared.
Secondary Segment
Since the business opcraﬂons of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered to opersie only in fhe domestic sepment and
herefore there is no rep geographic sogment,
Segment iaformation a8 at sud for the year ended March 31, 2019
Particalars Finu_ncing Capltal based Unallocated Tatat
business busimess
Revenue from eperailons
trevest income 4,656.13 46.48 - 4,702.51
Oiher oparting incostie 119,39 435.78 0.0 35518
‘Tolal revenue from eperntions i 4,775.52 482,26 0.01 8,257.79
Interest expenses 1,927.72 336.25 0,04 2,264.01
Orther expeves 394.70 5L.02 500 450,72
Total expenses 2,322.43 387.26 504 2,714.73)
[Segment profit{lass) before iaxstion 245310 94.99 {5.03) 2,543.06]
Income 1ax experises - - (835.04) {835.04)
Proflt for e yrar . 2453.10 24.99 (340,07 1,708.42
Chiher comprehensive income {1.05} {0.18) - {1.23}
Tolal comprehensive income 2,452.05 24,81 {840.07) 1,706,79
Segment nsszts 29,363.73 3,903.83 261.54 34,029.10
Sepment Habilles 20,135, 14 3,455.06 263.93 23,964.13
Capilst expenditure * 795 018 - 8.13
Depreciation and amoritsation 0.76 213 - 0.89
Stgaifiesnt evnecash ltems (et} {128.66) 166.15 . 3748




Edelweins Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the fiouncis) siatemonts for the yoar eaded March 31,2019

{Currency:Indian rupees in million)

42,

£,

o reporting (continued)

Segment information as at and for the year endod March 31,2018

Particulars Fiosnclnp  Capitatbased . Total
business

Reveoue from operations

Tmerest income 3,173.62 38.67 - 32

Other operting income 84,75 577.32 - 462,07

Tatal revenue o opersdons 3,258.37 61599 - 3,874.36

Intevest expenges 121271 282,54 9,24 1,504.49

Unher expenges 1,057,359 30.89 0.00 1,088 48

Total expenses 2,27530 31343 pe L ] 2,592.97
Segment profit/{loss) before taxation 988.07 302.56 ©9.24) i281.30

Insome lax expestses - - (21755} {217.55)
Profit for ihe year 988.07 302.56 (226,79) 1,063.84

Other compechensive income 0.04 0.0l - C.05
‘Tetsl comprebensive incame 98811 302.57 (226.79) 1,063.89
Segment assets 28,604.73 6,444,.20 37 354872
Segment Habliidcs 21,9174 5,022.61 25298 27,179.33
Capltal expendltare 0.1 0.03 - 0,14
Deprochation wad amortisstlon 6.0% 0.02 B 011
lS!ga;lEnm notcash items (nef} (919.32) (919,10} - {1,838.42)
Segment information as at April 1, 2017

Financing Capital based
Parii
articulars busiaess buslness Unsliocated Tatal

Segment asaets 1516443 5,167.70 157.98 1049011
Segment tabllloes i2,204.83 13199 42,59 13,567.41




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limitcd
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(Cunency:[ndian rapees in miltion)

43. Change in labititles arising from financing acitivics

Particelars As at April 01, 2018 Cush Flows Changes in Fair value Others (nef)* As at March 31, 201¢
Debt securitics 17,970.76 4,246,27 - 58.73 22.275.76
Borrowings other than debt sceurities 8,198.80 (7,861.77) - 0.15 337.18
Subordinated Jiabilities . 168.26 - - {0.09) 161,17

26,330.82 {3,615.50) - 58.79 22,774.11

s

Particulars As at Agril D1, 2017 Cash Flows Changes in Fair vatue Others (nef)* As at March 31, 2018
Debi securities . 12,945,64 5,150.79 - (125.67} 17,970.76
Borrowings other than debt securitics 12.01 §,187.16 - ©0.37 8,198.80
Subordinated liabilitics 161.12 - - 0.34 161.26

13,118.77 13,337.95 - {125.90) 16,330.82

* Includes the sffect of accrued but not poid inlerest on borrowing, securities premium on issue of debt securifies
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2039
{Cutrency: Indian rupees)

45  Disclosure of related party transactions pursuant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party Transactions"

I List of related partics and relationship:

Names of related parties by whom control is

excercised Edelweiss Financial Services Limited {Ullimate Holding company}
Holding Company . ECap Eguitics Limited
Feltow subsidiaries with whom the transactions have
1aken place Edechveiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited
Edelweiss Securlties Limited
Edelcap Securities Limited
EdelGive Foundation

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporale Services Limited (Formerly Edclweiss
Commodities Services Limited)

Burlington Business Solutions Limited (Merged with Ecap Equities
Limited)

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Edelweiss Business Services Limited (Merged with Edelweiss Rural
& Corporate Services Limited (Formesty Edelweiss Commodities
Services Limiled w.e.f Ist August 2018)

Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Tokioe Life Insurance Company Limited

Eternity Business Centre Limited {Merged with Ecap Equitics
Limited)

EdelGive Foundation

Auris Corporate Centre Limited (Merged with Ecap Equities Limited)
Edelweiss Securitics Limited

Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edel Commeoditics Limited

EFSL Trading Limited

ECL Finance Limited

Edel Finance Company Limited

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

EW Clover Schemel

Assoclales Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund
Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Bhavin N Mchia (1il] 2 August 2018)
{with whom trangactions have taken place). Amit Dhawan (from 7 August 2018)
Sheetal Gandhi

Niket Joshi {from 2 May 2018)
The above list contain name of only those refated parties with whom the Cempany has undertaken transactions in cument or previous year,




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Currency: Indian rupees)
45  Disclosure of related party transactions pursaant to Ind AS 24 "Related Pasty Transactions”(continued)
f;: Natare of Transaction Helated Party Name 2018-19 2017-18
it Transactions with rclated pariles:
{I) Capital sccount transactions
1 Investments in units of Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund - 27.73
Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund 3597 159.27
g Conversion of Compulsorily convertible non- Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited . 1327
cumulative prefercnce shares by
Edelweiss Securities Limited - 1.54
ECap Equities Limited - 207.59
3 Compulsarily Convertible Debentures redeemed 1o Ecap Equities Limited - 268,87
(I} Current account transactions
1 Short term loans taken from (Refer note | i;elow} Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 15,368.05 25,454,76
2 Shor terms loans repaid to {refer note § helow) Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 23,129.52 17,692.80
3 Short tenm loans given to (refer note | below) Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 3,706.13 3,743.03
Edelcap Securities Limited 924,18
Edel Finance Company Limited 1.200.00 -
Edelhwiess Finance & Tavesiments Limited 648.84
4 Short term loans given repaid by (refer note | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 3.562.04 4,147.31
below) Edelecap Securities Limited - 930.77
Edetl Finance Company Limited - -
Edelweiss Finance & Invesiments Limited - 648.84
Edel Commodities Limited - 4.40
5 Issue of - benchmark linked debentures Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 40.00 1,290.00
6 Redemption - benchmark linked dobentures ECap Equities Limited 5,782.02 -
Edehveiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 68,94 -
7 Buyback - benchmark finked debentures ECap Equities Limited 98.2¢ -
8 Interest expense on loans taken from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 448.06 161.10
9 Inicrest expense on benchmark linked debentures  Ecap Equities Limited 604,22 38.68
Edelweiss Rural & Corperate Services Limited 1394 -
10 Interest expense on subordinate debt Edeiweiss ‘Yokio Life Insurance Company Limited 16.45 16.64
11 Interest income received from securities Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 21.88 -
12 Interest income on short term loan from Edelcap Securities Limited - 9118
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 40.97 171.20
Edel Finance Company Limited 1.08 -
Edehveiss Finance & Invesiments Limited 27.55 34,16
EW Clover Schemet - 0.i18
Edel Commodities Limited - 0.38
13 Interest income on magin from Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.02 0.02
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 1.84 3.12
14 Enterprise Service charges paid to Edelweiss Business Services Limited 53.33 19.16
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Cumrency: Indian rupees)

45 Disclasure of related party transactians pursuant to ind AS 24 "Related Party Transactlons"(continued)
g:‘ Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 2018-39 2017-18
(II} Current acconnt fransactions
15 Aranger fee paid to ECL Finance Limited 17.36 4529
16 Management fee paid o Edelweiss Alernative Asset Advisors Limited 3432 38,70
17 Llegal and professional fees paid 1o Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - B.17
{8 Reimbursements paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.83 0.11
Edelweiss Rural & Corpaorate Services Limited 029 0.45
ECL Finance Limited 0.02 0.06
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.35 -
Edelweiss Securities Limited - 000
EFSL Trading Limited - .01
Etemity Business Centre Limited - 0.01
ECap Equities Limited 0.41 0.01
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.07 -
Edelweiss Altemative Assel Advisors Limited 0.63 -
19  Rent paid to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2.72 0.96
Edelweiss Broking Limited . 0.10
Ecap Equities Limited 473 .15
ECL Finance Limited .53 0.11
Burlington Business Solutions Limited - 0.03
Eternity Business Cenire Limited - 0,04
Auris Corporate Centre Limited - 0.00
Edelwciss Asset Management Limited 025 -
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0,70 _
26 Rating Support fees paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 018 0.21
2t  Corporate Social Responsibilily EdelGive Foundation 5.00 -
22 Corporale Guarantee support fee paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 121.52 79.78
23 Commission and Sub-brokerage paid to Edelweiss Securities Limited - 1.12
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 26,77 9.91
24 Clearing charges paid 10 Edelweiss Securities Limited - .
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 0.14 0.1t
25 ESOP Cost Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 465 -
2 Remuneration to Key Management Personnel (refer Bhavin N Mehta i} 196
nate 2 below)
Amit Dhowan 10.98 -
{11) Secondary market transactlons
1 Sale of securitics (Securities held for trading) to ECL Finance Limited 3,592,75 641,31
Edelweiss Finance & Invesiments Limiled 10242 668.81
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,028.03 33.82
Edehweiss Retail Finance Limited 249,34 -
ECap Equities Limited 648.85 .
2 Purchase of securilies (Securities held for trading)  BCL Finance Limited - 245.17
from Eeap Equities Limited - 1,012.27
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited - 480,15
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1.163.28 2,501.53




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2619
{Currcncy: Indian rupees)

45 Disclosure of related party transactions pursuant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party Transactions' (continued)

g:;' Naturc of Transactfion Related Party Name 2018.19 2017-18
(111) Secondary market transactions
3 Ameount paid lo Broker for trading in cash segment  Edelweiss Securities Limited 589.89 -
4 Amount received from Broker for trading in cash Edelweiss Securities Limited 20722 R
segment .
5  Marpin placed with broker (refer note 1 below) Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 690,03 11,07
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.53 352.98
6 Margin withdrawn from broker (refer note | below) Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 37.74 277.61
Edelcap Securities Limited - 367.85
Edelweiss Securities Limited 1.39 -
7 Sale of Securities receipts 1o ECL Finance Limited 1,833.30 -
8 Purchese of property, plant and eguipment Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.88 -
ECL Finance Limited 0.19 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.00 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.00 -
(V) Balances with refated partles
I Investments in cquity shares Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 264.00 264.00
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 326.14 326,14
2 [Investments in units of Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund 80.41 56.89
Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund 210.27 159.27
3 Subordinate debt issued to . Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 150.00 150.00
4 Benchmark Debentured held by Ecap Equities Limited 195.55 -
5 Debenture and bonds {secarities held for rading) of ECL Finance Limited B 63.29
6 Non-convertible redeemable debentures Ecap Equities Limited - 3,302.64
Edeiweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 55.00
Interest acrrue but rot due on benchmark linked bt s
7 debentured held by Ecap Equities Limited 1.78 -
8 Interest acrrued on subordinate debt Edelweizss Tokio Life Insurance Comyany Limited 1117 1126
9 Shoert term loans taken from Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited - 7,761.96
{0 Short term loans given e Edelweiss Commuxdities Services Limited 203.60 -
Edel Finance Company Limited 1,200.00 N
11 Trade Payables to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 142,90 %0.50
Edelweiss Business Services Limited 30.29 8.59
Edelweiss Securities Limited 025 94,13
ECL Finance Limited 24.01 48.92
Ecap Equities Limited 2.23 017
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 34.92 44.09
Edelweiss Global Wealih Management Limited 8.04 405
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited - 0.20
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 8.83
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limiled B9 -
Edelweiss Assel Management Limited ot P 0.0% -
Edelweiss Broking Limited ._f:';s:?:»- "!',,f 018 -
Eternily Business Centre Limited / ¥ >\@ 0.00 -




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Noies to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Currency: Indian rupees)

45 Disclasure of refated party transactions pursuant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party Transactions” (continued)

::' Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 2018.19 2017-18
{I¥) Balances with related partics
i2  Other receivables from ECL Finance Limited 1733 0.0
Edetweiss Securities Limited L1t 0.94
Edehweiss Custodinl Services Limited 1.78 0.78
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.04
Edehweiss Finance & Investments Limited 222 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.13 .
ECap Equities Limited 002 -
Edelweiss Altemative Asset Advisors Limited 0.03 .
Edelweiss Buasiness Services Limited 0.06 -
Edelweiss Broking Limited 4.03 .
13 Interest receivable-Accrued & due-Group Company Edelweiss Rural & Corporale Services Limited 17.57 -
Ede¢l Finance Company Limited 0.98 -
14 Interest accrued but not due on debentuzes and ECL Finance Limited _ 14.49
bonds of
15 Margin placed with broker Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited GG7.67 59.40
Edelweiss Securities Limited - [.33
16 Corporate Guaraniee taken from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 5.030.10 8,492.50
Note
|  The intra proup Company loans are generally in the nature of revolving demand losns, Loan given/taken to/from parties and margin money placed / refund received
with/ from related pacties are disclosed bascd on the maximum incremental amount given/taken and placed / refund received during the reporting period,
2 Information relating to remuneration poid to key managerial person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment and provision made for

bonus which are provided for group of employees on an overall basis, These are included on cash basis.




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2619
{Currency:Indian rupees in million)

46. Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally
imposed capital requirements from its regulators and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Pillars of its policy are as follows:

a) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckets in order to minimize liquidity risk,

b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its liability issuances domestically and internationally by ensuring that the financial
strength of the balance sheets is preserved.

¢) Manage financial market risks arising from Interest rate, equity prices and minimise the impact of market volatility on earnings.
d) Leverage optimally in order to maximise shareholder returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of balance sheet.

This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business environment, financial market conditions
and interest rates environment

Regulatory capital

The below regulatory capital is compuled in accordance with Master Divection DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September
I, 2016 issued by Reserve Bank of India,

. ) As at Asat As at

Particulars " March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 81,2017
Capital Funds . T

Net owned funds (Tier | capital) L BT 7,875.63 4,327.38

Tier 1 capital N - .589.86 512.65 670.56
Total capital funds 933465 8,388.28 4,997.94
Total risk weighted assets/ exposures © L0 32,8284 35,933.69 18,150.75
% of capital funds to risk weighted assets/exposures: e

‘Tier 1 capital L L 26.64% 21.92% 23.84%

Tier II capital S 1.80% 1.43% 3.69%

Total capital Funds C L 2844% 23.35% 27.53%

No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years, However, they are under constant
review by the Board.
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47.  Fair Value measurement:
47.A  Valuation Principlcs

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer o linbility in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advanta geous) market at the
measurement date under carrent market conditions (i.c., an exit pricc), regardless oF whether that price is directly observable ar estimated using a walvation technique, In
order to show how Fair values have been derived, financial instrniments are classilied based on a hiorarchy of valuation technigues:

Level I - valuation lechnique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quated prices for identieal ingtraments in active markets that COompany can access at the
measurement dale.

Lavel 2 ~— valuation technigue using observable inputsiThose where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived Hom directly or indirecily
observable market dals available over the entire peried of the instrument's life,

Level 3 — valuation technique with significant unobservable inpats: Those that include one of more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

Refer note 4.10 for more details on fair value hierarchy

47.B  Valuation goverance framework

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to chsute sppropriate safeguards are in place
to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product initiatives (including their valuation methodologies) are subject o approvals by various funictions of the Company
including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference lo extemnally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price delermination o validation is used. For
inactive markeis, Company sources allernative markel information, with greater weight given to information that is considered to be more relevant and reliable.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However Finance department is also responsible for establishing pracedures
governing valuation and ensuring fair valoes are in complionce wilh accounting standards.

47.C  The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at falr votue by level of tie fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2019 . Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on o recurring hasis

Derivative financial instruments

Exchange-traded derivatives 413.69 - . 413.69

Embedded derivatives in benchmark-linked debentures - - 327.50 327.50
Total derivative finoncial instruments - A 413.69 - 327.50 741,19
Financial assets held for trading

Other debt sceurities ‘ - 1,142.87 “ 1,142.87
Total financlal assets held for trading - B - 1,142.87 - 1,142.87
Investments

Equity shares - - 6.58 6,58

Preference shares - - 3727 37.27

Security receipts - - 845.69 845,69

Units of AIF . - 290.68 290.68

Units of venture fund . - - $1.65 91.65
Total investments measured at fair value - C - - 1.271.87 1,271.87
Total (A+B+C) j 413.59 1,142.87 1,599.37 3,155.93
Liabilities measured at foir value on a recurring basls
Derivative linancial instruments

Exchange-traded derivatives 257 - - 2.57

Embedded derivatives in benchmark-linked debentures - - 42249 422,49

2.57 - 422.49 42506
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47.  Fair Value measurcment: (Continued)

As at March 31, 2018 ’ Level 1 Lovel2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair valge on # recurring basis

Derivative financial Instruments

Exchange-traded derivalives 1,90 - - 1,90
Embedded derivatives in benchmark-linked debentures - B 287.67 287.67
Total derivative financial Instruments - A 1.90 - 287.67 289.57
Finnnclal assets held for trading
Other debt securities - §01.01 - 101.01
Equity instruments 100.00 - - 100.00
Mutual fund units [,498.73 . - 1,498,73
Total fnancial assets held for trading - B 1,598.73 101.01 - 1,699.74
Investments
Equity shares - - 3.63 3.63
Preference shares - 256G 25.69
Securily reccipts . - - 3,692.00 1,692.00
Units of AIF - - 223.67 223.67
Units of venture fund - - 82,37 82,37
"Fotal investments measured at fair vaive - C - - 4,027.36 4,027.36
Tatal (A+B+C) 1,600.43 i01.01 4,315.03 6,016.67
Liabiities measured at fair value on s recurcing basls
Derlvative financial instruments
Exchange-traded derivatives . R . - 11.12
Embedded derivatives in benchmark-linked debentures - - 212.44 212.44
11.12 - 212.44 223.56
As at April 01, 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets mensurcd at falr value en a recurring basis
Derivative financial Instruments
Exchange-traded derivatives 61.78 - - 6178
Embedded derivatives in benchmark-linked debeatures - - 218.72 218.72
Total derivative finonctal instruments - A 61.78 - 21872 280,50
Financinl assets held for trading
Government debt securities - - - -
Other debt securities - - - -
Muiuat fund units - B -
Equity instruments 1,230.94 - - 1,230.94
Total financiol nssets held for trading - B 1,230.94 - - 1,230.94
Investraents
Equity shares 444 88 - 366.55 811.43
Preference shares - - 25.69 25.69
Security receipls - - 2,173.04 2,173.04
Units of AIF - - 29,16 29,16
Units of venture fund - - 52,75 52.75
Mutual fund units 98.66 - - 98.66
Warrants - 11.49 - 149
Total investments measured at fair value - C 543.54 11.49 2,647,119 3,202,22
Total (A+B+C) 1.836.26 ii.49 2.865.91 %‘713.66
Liabilities measured at fair value on a recursing basis
Perivative financial instruments
Exchange-traded derivatives 24,34 - - 24,34
Embedded derivatives in benchmarik-linked debertures - - 266,32 266.32

Total (A+B) ) 2434 N 36632 350,68
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47.  Fair Value measurcment: {Confinued)

D. Yaluation techniques:

Debt securites:

Fair value of debt securilies is devived based on the indicative quotes of price and yictds provailing in the market as at the reponting dote. The Company Tvas used
quoted price of pational stock exch h botds are traded actively. In cases where debt securitles are not activity traded, the Company has used CRISIL
Corpornte Boad Vatuer model for n'msunng fair volue.

Security recelpis

The market for these sccurities is not aclive. Therefore, (e Company uscs valuation techniques to measure heir fir values. Since the security receipts are less liguid

instruments (herefors they arc vafued by discounted cash flow models, Expected cosh flow levels are esti 1 by using quantitative and qualitative measures
garding the ch isties of the underlying nssets including prepayment rates, default mies and other cconomic drivers. Securities recelpts with significant

unobservable valuation inputs are classified as Lovel 3.

Equity fnstruments, preferedee shares, warrants and units of mulaat fund;

The majority of equity instruments are actively troded on stock exchanges with readily ovailable active prices oa & repular basis. Such instraments are <lassified as

Level 1. Units beld in funds are tneasured based on iheir published net asset valus (NAVY), faking into account redemption and/or other restrictions. Such instruments

are also classified as Level L Unguoled equity instruments, proference shares and warrants are initinlly recognised at transaction price and ne-measured at each

reporting date at valuation provided by extornul valuer at i tevel Allunquoted jnstruments sre classified at Lovel 3.

Units of AIF Fund and Veoture Fund
Units beld in AIF funds are measured based on their published net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions. Such instrunents are

classified as Level 3

Embedded derdvative:

An embedded derivative is w comy of 2 hybrid & that also includes a non-derfvative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined instrument vary in a way similor to a stand-alone derivative,

Compary uscs valuation models which ealculate the present value of expected future cash flows, based upori ‘no arbitmge’ principles. Inpats to valuatl dels are
determined from observable market {Indicés) data wherever possible, including prices available from o denlz:s, brokers, company classify these embedded
derivative ag tevel 3 instrumtents.

Exchange traded derivatives:

Exchange traded derivatives includes index/stock options. indes/stock futurcs, pany uses exchange traded prices to value these derivative and classify these

ingtrement as fevel 1.
E. ‘There have been no transfers hetween Ievels during the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

F. The follawing table shows a reconcillation of the spening bafances and the closing batances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair vatue
hicrarchy. .
Sccurlty  Unlisof Units of venture Equbty Other debt
Financiai ycar ended March 2019 reeed AIF fund_ Iostroments  securliics Totat
Tavestments - at April 1, 2018 3,69200 223.67 8237 3.63 2569 402736
Purchase 530221 597 - - - 533818
Sule / redemption procceds {8.350.50) - . - - (8,350,530}
Transfer into level 3 - - - - - -
Tranafer from level 3 - - - . - -
Profit for the year necognised in profit or loss 20198 irm 9.28 155 1158 256.83
Investments - at March 31, 2019 §45.69 290,68 9l.=6§ 6.58 3727 127187
Unrealised gain/{l.oss) related to balanees held at the cnd of the year 3zl 38.5¢6 21,66 4.84 (2.73) 373.54
Sccurity  Unitsof  Units of venture Tquity Other debt
Financigl year ended Mavch 2018 receipts AJF fund insirumenis securitics Total
Iavestracnts - at Apell 1, 2017 2,173.04 29.16 5175 366.55 1569 1,647.19
Purchasc Z.263.38 ER7.00 21,67 - - 247205
Sale / redemption pooceeds : £559.01) - - 413.95) - (L372.90)
Transfer into leve! 3 - - - - - -
Transfer from fevel 3 - - . . - -
Profit for the year recognised in profit or loss 214.59 7.51 195 51.03 . 281.08
Investments - at March 31, 2018 3,69:.00 223.67 $2.37 3& 15.69 4!017.36
Unrealised gainf(Loss) related to balances held at the end of the year 2973 .50 1237 189 {1431) 237.19
‘The following table shows a recondillation of the opening balances and the closing balances for falr value measurements in Level 3 of the falr value
hierarchy.
Embedded Options
Assets Linbilitios Net Balance
Finanedlal yeur ended March 2019
at April 1, 2018 8767 21244 75.23
Issuances 244.04 208.91 35.i3
Settlements 95 42,29 2066
Changes in fair value recopgnised in profit oy toss (276.16) {41.15) (235,01}
Investments - at March 31, 2019 A21.50 422,49 194.99)
==
Embedded Optfony
Assets Liabilities Net Balance e
Financial year ended March 2018 T et e
& at April 1, 2017 21837 22317 {4.80}
J Issuances 126.53 176.63 (50.08)
ements £57.66) (152.31) 124.65
in falr vaiue recognised in profit or loss 042 {5.08) 347

b 31,2018 237.68 212,44 5.4
— = F——— ——
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o
& & i i
Onn_cza R Type of Financial ﬂ“wucﬂ»wﬂuhﬂ.“umﬁ Valuation Technigues Sipnificant Range of estimates  Increase inthe Change in fair Decrease in the Change in fair
Instruments 2018 Unobservable input for unobscrvable input  unobservable input unebservable input valie
Discounted Cash flow. The present value of 59 increass in 5% Decrease in
ity receip expested future economic bencfits (0 be 27704 Expected future 12595  Expected future 125.95
Security s 3.692.00 derived from the ownership of the undeslying Expected fitnure cash flows ! Cash flow MM.. sh ao—“z. ( '
investments of the Trust,
Reisk-adiusted di 0.5% increase in 0.5% Decrease in
sk-adjusted discaunt 12%  Risk-adjnsted (3456)  Risk-adjusted 35.36
mts discount raie discount mte
- 5% Decrease in
5% Increase in Fair .
. Fair value of vnderlyisg Rs. 101,435 to Rs. N 1.4 Fair value of 11.18
Units of AIF 22367 WNet Asset approach investrments 109,179 per unit Hw:o“ .M.n Nﬂ.mo%sw A8 Underlyiog ( )
Investment
5% Encrease in Fair 5% Docrease in
N Fair value of underlying Rs. 114,692 10 Rs. . Fairvalue of 2
Units of venture fund 8237 Not Asset approach invesTnents 156,471 per wnit u.“wno” Mhnmﬂmn%_:m 4.12 Underlying {4.12)
Investment
N o so .
Unquoted equity shares 1.63 Comparzble transaction and P/E Fair value per share Rs. 10} per shore W»NME_ case in Fair 0.18 WMHMH.“ n (0.18)
Y in Fai 5% Decrease |
Unquoted preference shares 2569 Comparsble ransaction snd P/E Fair value per share Rs4S23pershare o oresse inFal 128 s Decrease in (1.28)
Discounted Casl flows: The present value of . . % D .
Embredded dorivatives (net) 75.23 expecicd futare cash flows o basad on  Ivinrket Index Curve 5% 7.“%.“” 1 .ﬁEH:Ea (3.39) gwnﬂnn Index nh“n 339
Nifty forward discounted at current risk
adjusted discount rote . . . .
. Risk-adiusted discount . 0.5% increase in . 0.5% increase in
e 10.25% Risk-adjusted 041  Risk-adjusted (041)
ke discount vate discount rate
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Notes to the finanecial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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47. Fair Value measurement: {Continued)

G. Fair value of financial instruments net measured at fair value:
The table below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments that are not carred at fair
value in the financial statements. This table does not include the fair values of non—financial assets and non-financial liabilities.

As at March 31, 2019 Carrying Value Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,670.11 4,670.11 - - 4,670,11
Trade Receivables 2134 - 21.34 - 21.34
Other Receivables 2646 - 26.46 - 26.46
Loans 24,560.55 - - 21481705 24,817.05
Invesiments 590.14 - 590.14 - 590.14
Cther financial assels 668.12 - 668.12 - 668.12
Total Financial Assets 36,536,72 4,670.11 1,306.06 24,817.45 30,793.22
Financial Liabilitics

Trade payables 323.89 - 323.39 - 323.89
Debt sccurities 22,275.76 - 18,867.53 - 18,867.53
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 337.18 - 342.34 - 342.34
Subordinated Linbilities i61.17 - 169.78 - 169,78
Other financial lisbilitics . 22.74 - 2274 - 22.74
Total Financial Liahilitics 23,120.74 - 19,726.28 - 19,726.28
Off balance-sheet items

Undrawn commitiments 8,823.44 - - 3,700.92 3,700.92
Total Off halance-sheet items §,823.44 - - 3,700.92 3,700.92
As at March 31,2018 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Cash and cash eguivalents 363.75 363.75 - - 363.75
Trade Reccivables 12.85 - [2.85 - 12.85
Other Receivables 10.60 - 10.60 - 10.60
Loans 27.977.43 - - 27,904.85 27,904.85
Invesiments ’ 590,14 - 590.14 - £50.14
QOther financial assels 19.33 - 19.33 - 19.33
Fotal Finanrcia) Assets 28,974.10 363.75 632.92 27,904,85 28,901.52
Financial Lizbilitles

Trade payables 345.54 - 345.54 - 145,54
Debt securities 17,970.76 - 15,883.42 - 15,883.42
Borrowings (other than debt sccurities) . 8,198.80 - 8,321.57 - 8,321.57
Subordinated Liabilities 161.26 - 180.36 - £80.36
Cther financiol linbilities 16.54 - 16.54 - 16.54
Total Financial Liabilities 26,692.90 - 24,747.43 - 24,747.43
Off balunce-shect items

Undrawn commitments 828.12 - - 293.49 293,49
Total Off balsnce-sheet jters . 828.12 - - 29349 293 49
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{Cumrency:Indian rupees in million)

47. Fair Value measurement: (Continued)

G.

Fair value of financial instruments not measarcd at fair vaiue {continued):
As st April 01, 2017 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Asscts
Cash and cash cquivalents 70.20 020 - - 70.20
Trade Receivables 0.02 - 0.02 - 4.02
Other Receivables 69.76 - 69.76 - 69.76
Loans 14,363.67 - - 14,518.22 14,518.22
Investiments 656.81 - 656.81 - 656.81
Other financial nssels 460.66 - 460.66 - 460.66
Tatal Financial Assets - 15,621.12 76.20 1,187.25 14,518.22 15,775.67
o
Financial Liabilitics -
Trade payables 74.35 - 74,35 - 74.35
Debt securities 12,945.64 - 11,513.04 - 11,513.04
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 12.01 - 124 - 12,31
Subordinaled Liabilities 16142 - 182,26 - 18226
Other financial liabilities 58.65 - 58.65 - 58.65
Tatal Financial Liabilitics i 13,251,717 - 11,840.31 - 11,841.31
OFf balance-sheet items
Undrawn commitments 212,94 - - 70.58 70,58
Total OIT balance-shect ltems 212.94 - - 70.58 70.58
Valuation Mcthodologles of Financial Instruments not messured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used 1o determine faiv values for the ebove financial instruments which are not recorded and measured a1 fair value in
the Company's financial statements. These Fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologics and assumptions relate only to the
instruments in the above tables and, as such, may differ from the techniques and assumptions explained in noles.

Short Term Financial Assets and Lisbilities

For financial assets and financial lisbilities that have a shori-teny maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts ore a reasonable approximation of their
fair value. Such instruments include: Trade receivables, balances other than cash and cash cquivalents, trade payables and contract Hability withowt a specific
maturity. Such smounts have been classified as Level 2 on the basis that no adjustments have been made 10 the bafances in the balance sheet.

Financial assets at amortised cost
The fair values financial assets measured at amortised cost ate estimated using 8 discounted cash flow modef based on contractual cash flows using actual or
estimated vields and discounting by vields incorporating the counterparties’ eredit risk.

Issucd Debt
The fair value of issued debl is estimated by a discounted cash flow model.

OIT balance-sheet .
Estimated fair values of off-balance sheet positions in form of undrawn commitment are estimated wsing a discounted cash flow model based on contractual

comumitted cash flows after applying the credit coversion factor, using aclual or estimaled yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterpartics’ credit
risk.
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48, Risk Managemaent

A. Introduction and risk prefile

Risk s an ind part of Company’s b activiics, When the Company extends a corposale or retail foan, buys or sells scounitics in market, or effers other products or services, the
Company takes on some degree ofrisk. The Company's overall objective is 1o ge its bust and the associzted rigks, in 2 manner that balances serving the interests of its customers
and {nvestors and protécts the safity and soundness of the Company.

The Company believes that effective risk management requires:
1} Accepiance of respansibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all irdividunls within the Company;

2} Ownership of risk {dentiieation, datz and within gach of the tines of business and Corporate; and

3} Finnwide stractores for risk povernance

The Company strives for irmual fmpe ¢ through effors 1o ent % ing employee training and develop and other measures,
Risk Management Structure

W have & well-defined risk management policy framework for risk identification, azsessment and control o effectively manage risks associated with the varfous business activities. The
risk fanction is monitored primnrily by the business risk group, The Edelweiss Group has also established a Global Risk Commitice that is responsible for managivg the risk arising out of
various businoss activities at a central level

Qurr risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are conservative 1o be shle to withstand market volatility and scenarios of sharply declining prices. As a resutt, we follow

canservative lending nonms. The Edelweiss Groop fises the risk itoring sy to menilor our clieat’s credit oxposues which is in addition to the monitoring underaken by the
tespeclive businesses. -
The Company's board of dil s has overall mesponsibility for the cstablistiment and oversight of the Company®s risk t fi k, The board has astablished the Risk

Management Commiitee, which is responsible for develaping and mositoring the Company's risk management policies, The Committee hokds regular meetiags and report ta board on ils
activities.

The audit commiliee oversees how HONH0S flance with the C y's risk palicies and procedures, and reviews the adi

X of the risk
framework in relation to the risks feced by the Company. The audit commitive is assisted in dts aversight role by intemal audit, Tntemall audit undiertabies both repatae and ad how revicws of
sk nent controls and p dures, the results of which are reporied to the audit comonitice,

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company’s business prcesses ensure complete indeperd of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit appraisal & credit control pracesses, eentralised operations unit,

independent audit unit for cheoking compliance with the prescribed policies and approving loans at fransaction level as well as our risk t and policies ailow layers of

multiple checks and verifications. Cur key business pratesses arc regularly monitored by the heod of our business or operations. Our foan approval and administrtion procedurss,
lection and eaf Provedures are designed to minimise delinquencies and maxinlse ¢ "

AlaltJevels of the Company's operations, specifieally {atlored risk reporis are prepared and distributed in order o ensure st all business divisions have aceess o extensive, necessary and
up=to-date infornation,

It is the Company’s policy that a monthly briefing is given to the Board of Divectors and all other rel bers of the Company in the utilisation of market Mmils, proprictary
investmeats and liquidity, plus any other risk developments.
It is the Company's policy to ensure that a rabust risk is embedded in its organisational risk culture, Employces arc expecled to take hip and be ble for the risks
the Company is exposed to. The Company's i ining 2nd develop phasises that employees 2re made aware of the Company's risk appetite and they are supported in thair
roles and responsibilitics to monilor and kecp their caposure to risk within the Company's risk appetite Hmits, Compii breaches and i } audit findings arc imyp 1 of
employees” annual ratings and remsuneralion reviews.
D. Types of Risks -
The Company's risks are generally categorized in the followlng risk types:
Motes |[Risks Arising from Measwrement, monitoring and management of risk
1{Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss ifa Arises principatly from financing, Measured ag the amount that could be tost if a customer or
custemner or counterparly fails (o meet an dealing in Corporate Bonds, counterparty fhils to make repayments;
obligation under a contract Investments in Mufual Fund, Equity, but
also from certain other products such as [Monitored using various interna! risk management measures and
: guarantees and derivatives within limits approved by individuals within a fmmework of
delegated anthorities; and
Managed through a robust risk control frumework, which
outlines clear and consistent pelicies, principles and guidance for
risk monagers.
2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that we do not have Liquidily risk arises from mismatches in |[Measured using & range of metrics, including Assct Liability
sufficicnt financial : the timing of cash flows. mismatch, Debt Equity Ratio
resources to meet our oblipations
as they falf duc or that we can only dose atan | Arises when illiquid asset positions Regular monitoring of funding levels to ensure to meet the
lexcessive cost, cannot be funded at the expected tenns qui for Business and materity of our liabilities.
and when required,
Maintain diverse sources of funding and liquid assets to facilitate
flexibility in meeting our liquidity requirements of the Company.
3jMarket risk '
Market risk is the risk that Exposure lo market risk is Measured using sensitivities, detailed picture of potential gains
movements in market factors,such scparated into two portfolios: trading  1and losses for a range of market movements and scenados.
as Interest rates, equity prices and Index prices,  |and non-trading.
will reduce our income or the value of our Monitored using measures, including the sensitivity of net
partfolios interest income.

Munnaged using risk limits approved by the risk manug
- commiltee.
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48, Risk Managemend
438.D.F Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss te the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financiat instnesment fails to meet its contraclual obligations, and
arises principally from the Company's Trade reccivables and Loans, The Company has adopled a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
abitains sufficient collatersl, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. In case the loans are to be restructured,
similar credit assessment process is followed by the Company.

The Company's cxposure to credit risk is mﬂucnccd mainly by the individual characterictlcs of each H also iders the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers npcmic

The Compuny menages ord controls credit risk by setting iimits on the amount of risk it is willing to secept for individual counferpartics/Groups {Single Borrowing
LimitGroup Borrowing Limit) and for industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such Himits.

Credit quality of o customer s assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company ond market intelligence. Outstanding customer receivables
are regulurly monitored. The credit quality review process sims to alfow the Company 1o nssess the potentia! foss as a result of the risks to which it is caposed and 1ake
corrective actions,

Derivative finsncial Instruments:

Credit risk atising fram derivative financial instruments is, at sny time, limited 10 those with positive falr values, as rceorded on the halance sheet. With gross-sestied
derivatives, the Company is also d to a settl t risk, being the risk that the Company honours its oblipation, but the counterpaty fits 1o deliver the counter value,

H

Impairment Assesment;

The Company applies the expected credit loss model far recognising impairment foss. The expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which
takes into account historicat crodit foss experience and adjusted for forwand-looking information.

The expeeted credit loss is a praduct of exposure at default, probability of default and loss given default. The Company has devised an interal model to evaluase the
probobility of default and loss given default bascd on the parnineters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the lonns are classified into various stages as follows:

Toternal rating grade Internal grading description Stages
Performing
High grade Odpd and 1to 30 dpd Stage |
Swumndard grade 31 lo 90 dpd Stage 2
Non-performing
Individually impairecd . 90+ dpd Steged
Credit loss is the diffi b all | cashy flows that are due to an emtity in d with the and otk the cash flows that the enlity expects to

receive (ie,, all cash shortfalls), discounted at the originel EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) compuntation is not driven by any single methodotogy, however methodology
and approach used mug reflect the following:

£} Anumbiased and probability weighted that evat a range of possibl
4

2) Reasonable and supportahle information that is avaitable without indue cost and effort at the repotting dale about past events, carrent conditions and forceasts of
future economic conditions;

3} Time value of mongy

W'Ente ﬂse umc value of moncyclcmcm is currently heing f: mm ECL while di ing cash flows by the Effective Interest Rate (EIR), the ohjective of

ic model using jables (MEVs) Is to nddress the first two requirements, This has been achieved by using the model
putput tnndjust the PD risk component lnordcﬂo m#ke it forward lootdng and probability-weighted

Slgniffcant inerease fn eredit visk (SICR)

C considers a financial instrument defaulted, clessiffed 15 Stage 3 (credit-impalred) for ECL caleulntions, in all cases when the borower becoines 90 days past due.

Classificotion of asscts form stage 1 to siage 2 has beon carried out besed on SICR eriterion. Accounts which are more than 30 days past due Tave been identificd as

accounls where significany erease in credit sk bes been observed, These have boen classified as Stage 2 assels. When such events ccour, the Company carefully

considers whether the event should result in treating the a3 delilted and therefore d a5 Stage 3 For ECL ealeulations or whethor Stage 2 is approprinte,

LErohabitlty of Default

Probability of default {PD} is on estimate of the likelibood of default over a given time horizon. PD estiynation process is done based on historical Infernal data available
wnh the Compony. While amiving at the PD, the Company also ensures that the factors thal affects the macro cconomic trends are considered to a reasonable extent,

y. € lculates the 12 month PD by taking inlo sccount the past historiea! trends of the Loans/portfolio and its credit performance. In case of
assets where there is a s;gmf'mt increase in credit risk / credit impaircd gsseis, lifetime PD has been applied.

Loss Given Defrolt (EGD)

The LGD represents expocted losses on the EAD given the event of defaull, toking inta nccount, among other attributes, the mitigating effest of collatera] vajue at the time it
is expected to be ruzlised and the time value of money. The Loas Given Default (LGD) has been computed with work hodology. Workoat LGD is widely considered
to be the most flexihle, transparent and logical approach to build an LGD modcl. Along witl getuel recoveries, valae of the underlying collatersl has been factored in o
estimate fulure recoveries in LOD computation. Workout LGID computation nvelves the nciual ies b5 weil 83 future rocoverics (as a part of the workout process) on
a particular focility, as a p of balance cutstanding =1 the time of DefaultRestructuring. The asscssment of workout LGD was then performed, Principat ontsmndmg
Iomwnsmscd which went into the denominator of the LGD caleulatien, LGD ¢ ion has been done for each 2 sub sey

B 4 u‘
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48.
48.D.1

48.D.2

Risk Management (continued)
Credit Risk (continied)

Exposure at Delault (READ)

The amount which the borrower will owe to the portfolio ot the time of default is defined as Exposura at Default (EAD). While the drown credit line reflects the explicit
cxposure for the Company, dere might be variable exposure that may incresse the EAD. These exposures are of the natwe where the Company provides future
commitments, in addition to the current eredit. Thersfore, the expasure will contain both on and ofi balance sheet values. The value of cxposure is given by the following
formala:

EAD = Dmwn Credit Line + Credit C, ion Factor * Und Credit Line
Where,
Drawn Credit Line = Current outstanding amount
Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) = Expeclefl futues drawdown as & proportion of undravwm smount

Undrawa Credit Line = Difference b the tetal which the Company has comrnlited and the drawn crediz Jine Whils the drawn exposure and limits for
the customer are available, the modelling of CCF is required for computing the EAD

Fornard looking s

“A measure of ECL i5 an unbissed probability-weighted that Is determined by evaluating o range of possible outcomes and wsing reasonable and supponable
information that fa available without undue cost or effort st the reporting date aboust past events, cwvent conditions and forecasts of fituns cconomic conditions.”

Fo fullil dw sbove requil Company has incorp d forward leoking information imo its mensurement of ECL. ‘The objcctive of developing & macrosconomic model
using exegenous macrosconomic variables {MEVs) is 1o oddress the requi of unbiased, probability weighted oulcomes whike taking into sccount carrent conditions
aswell as future cconomic conditions. This will be achieved by using the mode! outpwt to adjust the PD ritk component in order to make it forward looking snd probabilily-
weighted.

Exogenous macroeconomic. parameters were used as independent (X} verinbles to predict the dependent {¥) varinble. Keeping in mind Ind AS requirements around

btaining relishle snd suppersble information, without incurring undue cost or effort- based on advice of risk commitice members and economic experts and consideration
of n variety of cxtemal gctunl and fi indc lon, the Company formulates base case view of the future divection of rclovant cc ic varisble os well as o
representative range of other possible forcoast scenario. Thic process involves doveloping two or more addidonal ceonomic scenarios ard consideding the relative
probabilities of each outcome.

Data spurcing

The Company ic expected to obtain ble nnd supporioble inf ion that is available without undus cost or effort. Keoping in mind the above requirement
i inft ion was aggregated from Economic IntcHigencs Unit (EIL), Bloomberg, World Bank, RBI databnse. The EIU data has a dalabsse of acound 150

macrocconamile variobles as well as thelr forecasted values. Beyond 2022 sacro-economic varizbles are d by mean ing the values to their long torm nveroge,

Extersal infi ion includ o datn and fi blishad by pov | bodies and y authoritics in the country, supranmiionsl organisations such s

the OECD and the IMF, and sclectud private sector snd academic forccasters,

P welghted scenavin H

Teo b mic impact inte probability-weighted, cach io Bag an inted probability. In order to ensure consisiency across macrosconomic models,

thess pu;bn'bililics were calealaied at #n overalt loved for both Retail and Non-Reiail portfolios, keeping in mind that though the impact of o scenario ncross differemn
pertfolios may differ based on endogentus factors, ihe probability of a scenario wnfolding is purely exogenous, and hence should not vary.

The Company lias ifentified and documented key drivers of credit risk and eredit Josses for each perifolio of financial instruments and using sn snalysis of historical data,
has estimated relationship between marce-economic variobles and credit risk and credit losscs,

The significent cconomic parameters scenarios used are as follows:

fKey Economic Parameter - Base FY +1 | Buse FY +2

[Debit-to-GDP ratio; 18.3-13.7% | 18,7-19.2%

Total factor productivity 4-4,5 4.4.5.0

Labor productivity growth: 5.1-5.5% $5-6.3%

Unemploymatt raie . 8.5-8.8% 8.5-8.8%

Gross Dormestic Product 7.0-7.5% 1.5-80%

Apart from the sbove significant cconomic parameters, the Company has also identified and used few other econamic parameter 1o build up the forward looking scenarios.
These indi include inflation, for d prowth in real estsie sector, expectation of industry performance, coblateral coverage , conduct of anil
expectation of market liquidity. -

Above explained indicators have supported i measurement of ECL, and behaviours of such jndi will suilably suppon going ferward in measwrement of forward
looking scenarlos,

Predicted relationship bet the key indicators and default md loss rates on various portfolios of financial assess have hren developed based on analysing historicat data
ovor the past § years,

Risk Concentratien

Concentrtions arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar b its, o activitics in the same grogmphical region, or have similar ceonomic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractus! ohligations to be simiturly affecicd by changes in economic, politicat or other conditions. Concentrations indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Conmpany’s perfc 10 devel affecting o particular industry or geographical focation.

{2

In ordor to avoid i fons of risk, the Company's palicics and procedwres include specific guidelines to focus on matntaing g & diversified pontfolio,
Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed sccordingly,

The following table shows the risk concentration by Industry for the companents of the balance sheet
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48, Rk Moangement (continwed}
Credit Risk (continued) .
48.0.2 Industry lysis - Rk ration s at 31 March 2019
Particunrs Prapdu M8t ptedure  Indwiy  RedBomie  Servkafecor Raullsm  Others Temt
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4670.11 - - - - - - - 4,670.11
Derivative firemclel nstruments T706.85 - - - . - - - 70635
Secwitics held for trading 1,142.86 - - - - - - - 1,142.86
Tmda recaivables - - - B - - - 21.34 2134
Other receivables - - . - - - - 26.46 2646
Loans 1,620.97 - - 493686 10,16595 300973 5308.69 - 2504220
Investments 1,733.09 - - - - . - 128.92 1,862.01
Other fnancial assets 668,12 - - - - - - - 668,12
Total Assots 10.542.00 - - 493686 1016508 308973 530869 17672 3413998
Tndusiry aoalysts - Risk concantrution as at 31 Marck 2018 '
Farilcutars wﬁ s"‘c e & f:::" Agleore  Indunry  ResEstate 35".;:‘: Retmil Losns  Othars ToLm
Financlal Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 363.7% - - - - - - . 363.75
Derivative financial instruments 287.70 - B - - - - - 287.70
Securitics hold for trading 1,699.73 - - - B - . - 1,699.73
Trade receivables - - - - . - - 12,35 12.8%
Other receivables - - - - . - - 10.60 1060
Loans 747.07 - - 6,025.50 14,35939  £35239 121766 - 2842211
Investments 4.509.44 - - - - - - 108,06 4,617.50
Other finanolal esssta 19.33 - - - - - - - 1933
Total Assots T£27.01 - - EUIS.GD 14.8%9.39 Sw 1£7.66 31.51 57
Industry analysly - Risk concenteatlon s at L Aprfl 2007
Particalars "‘“‘“‘“ s"‘: o & C:‘d’“ Agricalture  fxdostry  Real Esiste 9;;: Refalibosns  Oihess Tatal
Financlnl Asscts
Cash and cash equivalents 7020 - - - - - - - 7020
Dedvative financial {natruments 259.68 - - - - - - - 15964
Securities held for trading 17170 - - - - - - 1,05323 123093
Trade receivables B - “ - - - - 0.02 0.02
Other recaivables - - - - - - - 69,76 69,76
Loans 2,204,599 - - 3,207.50 546759 158862 11275 - 14,581.45
Investmenta 3,529.42 - . - - - - 29.61 3,859.03
Other financial asacix 450,66 - - - - - - . 460.66
Total Assets 6,702.65 . = 320750 846759 38861 11273 145162 2053173
48.0.3  Colluieral and cther cradit anhancements
The ssoum 2od type of colateral dred] depends on an

colkicral. The main types of colistcral cheioed are charges over real

the markot valme of collasters] and will sequen sdiRtiona] colletorn! in necordmce with the wnderbyiog aprooment.

The tsbles bedsw shows the maximen expasure to £redit risk by ciass of fixancisl arsed along with detalls on cozterals bokd apaingd exposore

omumaﬁnfumw.%nhmmmwmmmamumur
oeteta properties, invertary, truds receivables, motigage over raldential propertics, Securiiles. Management monliors

Muxinum sxposire to tredt risk
Asat Armi Al
Muth31L, 1008 March 31,3018 Apel 1, 2009 Friaeipal type of coflaters!
Finsncial zivets
Cash aad cosh equivaiems 46711 3375 220
Derivative fnancial festrummcnts 706.95 287.70 259.68
Securitics held for trading 1,142,856 1,699.74 123094 The Compmy nvant in high mied Corporate Bondy and Jiqoid Mol fund
wihs
Trodo receivabis 2134 12,85 002 These are roceivablea mainly from Clearing howses, Groug, Carrying minimum
ThE.
A6 10.60 69.76
1973351 2000013 1446366 Baqubty Skares, Mutua! Fand wrix, Land, Property, Project Recchabo sic,
$.308,65 182198 11279 Bquity shares and Mol fund units, Bonda, oc.
186200 4561750 33590
048,12 1993 45046
SN i 23258 JOSLTL,
A3 44 £28,12 21294 Equity Shaves, Mutosl Fond usity, Lend, Property, Project Reccivablo dic
s R E7 R E—1r LT

42,963.19 36,661,710 £0,744,68
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48, Risk Management (continued)

48.D.3 Collateral and other credit enhancements (eontinued)

Financial assets that are stape 3 and related collateral held in order to mitlgate potential losses nre given below:

Mayimum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2018

Carrying amount Fair value of
before ECL Assoclated ECL,  Carrylng amount eollateral
"a) Loans:
Corporate Credit * 106.83 5173 55.10 883.20
Retail Credit 4.30 123 3.07 328
‘Total Financial Asscts 111.13 52.96 58.17 83641
* Secured by way of a pari pasu’ clhiarge over collateral
Maximum expasure to credit risk as ot March 31, 2018
Carrying amount . Fair value of
before ECL Associnted ECL.  Carrying amount cotlateral
a) Loans:
Corporate Credit 506.20 49329 i2.91 1,158.70
Retail Credit ’ - - . .
Total Financial Assets 506.20 493.29 12.91 1,158.70

Maximum exposure to credit risk as ot Anrli 1, 2017

There are no financial assots classified as slage 3 as at April 1, 2017,
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48, Risk Mansgement (Cominned)
48.E Liguidity Rlsk
wﬂhmmhnﬁmwwmmmhmmummmww-unmwﬁmmiumﬂnhuhmm Liguidity risk arives becamia of

hpwwthmmmw&mhwmhmnubnmmMMMunm&afuﬂﬂmﬂuhmmﬂmmwwmmmmﬁm

Gnqnqybu;Lhddlqu&:‘myPolwhphuhwmmWymmmdwm.Mumeh provided with update o0 txpectod lqukding shorfits in Wormal as
ol 23 Strees soesais.

Liguldity Cushion:
Asat Assl Axat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 Apdl 2017
Lisuldity cashiion : '
Dt Sexutitios 1.142.87 101,01 -
Muusl Fund Frvestnenis w 1,498.73 -
Quated Equity Fstramenic - 100.00 1,230.94
Total Liqutdhy cushien 1,142.87 1,693.74 1.230.94
Financing Arrangment
WWmemmmwwmmmmﬂhmm
Arnt At Asnt
31 Muarch 2019 31 March 2018 E-Apr-17
{Comracd Lives thom Brska 4500 45,00 -
As at March 31, 2019 - Aralysis of centraciua) matusitios of financial assets and Nahilities
6 Montha to 1 More than 5
On Demand Lpto 3 Months 3 t0 5 Moaths vost I yeartn 5 years venrs Total
Financlal Auels
Cash and cash ceuivalenis 120.11 4.500,00 - 50.00 - - 4,670.11
Derivative flnsncial instruments - 106,85 - - - - 796,85
Securities hald for irading - 1,142.86 - B - - 1,142,886
Recsivables
{D) Trade roceivables - 2534 - - - - 2104
{ii} Other recatvables - 1645 - - - - 2646
Loans - 2363.81 1.537.40 448287 23,730.63 1.137.45 3325216
Invesiments - - - - - 1,862.01 1,862.01
Other financial assets - 668,12 - - - - 668.12
Totnl undiscounted financlad asyots 120,11 342944 153740 4.532.87 23,730.63 2.999.46 42,349.91
Financial Liabilities
{#) Detivaiive financial instrurents - 42249 - - - N 422 49
(b) Trado payables - 32389 - - - - 32339
(0) Debt socutitics - 461334 1,384.83 4,566.83 9,605.55 2,171.3) 2234133
(d) Bomowings (odher than debt sccuritfes) 12.40 3.0 sz 53.07 54.19 - 3953
() Subordinated Lishilitics - - 16.45 - 66,05 123.05 265.55
() Other financis] Habilities - 22,74 - - - - 22,74
Total undiscounted fivancial Bakilities 1240 5A415.59 143389 4,629.%0 9.925.19 2,354,138 2277185
b
Total net financial assets / (Iinbliitles) 107.71 401335 103.69 (97.03) 13,804,854 64588 1857805
As =t Marveh 31, 2018 = Awalysts of contractunl vnturities of financlal axvets and llahlities
& Months to 1 More than 5
On Demand Upto3 Mouths 3 to 6 Months year 1 yeur o Syenrs years Total
Floancisl Acsets
Cash and cash equivaients 363,75 - - . - - 363.75
Derivative finenclal instruments - 287.70 - B - - 28710
Securitics hold for trading - 1,669, 74 - - - - 1.£99.74
Receivables
(D) Trade recoivables - 12,35 - - - - 1285
{ii} Other receivables - 10.60 . - - - 10.60
Loans - 50233 1,132.50 291955 32,715.16 1,723.61 38,997.55
Investmonts - - - - - 4,617.50 4,617.50
Cther firancial asssts - 9.3 - - - - 19.33
‘Tolal undiscouated financinl astets 263.73 2.532.55 1,532.50 1.919.55 32,718.16 6.345.51 46,009.02
— —— e e e
Financial Liabilities
(&) Derlvative financisk instruments - 212,44 - - - - 2i2.44
(b) Trade paysbles . 345.54 - - - - 345.54
{c) Debt sccarities - 105128 369711 2,504.87 9,290.92 £613.73 18,157.84
(d) Borronvings {other than debi sccuritias) 1771417 3 308 341,40 382.92 - 9,068.88
{f) Subordinated Liabilities - - 16.55 - 66.00 19935 282.10
(g) Other financial Eabilities - 16,54 - - - - 16.54
Total undiscounted Ainancial lighHidey 7.774.17 1,663.04 3.744.74 34827 9.739.84 1813.23 18.083.34
Tosal net financiat assets / (liabilices)* {7410.42 __869.51 2,612.24)

ny had taken temporary Toan from relsted ics ll.i 7,751.96 million
jexm funds during the Ginencisl year 2058-19 and box a positive ALM position ae at March 31, 2019,




Edehweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financiat statements for the year ended March 31,2019
{Currency:Irdian rupess in mittion)

4B. Risk Management {Contintied}

48.E Liquidity Risk (contlaued)

As at April 1, 2017 - Analysis of contractual saaturities of financial ssscts and Kabifities

6 Months to 1 g More than §
On Pemand Upto 3 Months 3 to 5§ Months year 1 year o 5 years vears Thatal
Financial Asscis
Cash and cash equivalents 7620 - - - B - 70.20
Derivative financial instruments - 259.68 - - - - 25968
Securities held for rading - 1,230.94 - - - B 1.230.94
Receivables )
(i} Trade receivables - 002 . - - - 0.02
(ii) Other receivables - 69.76 - - - - 69.76
Loans - 2,290.37 82743 4,674.40 10,7066.23 138.66 18,637.09
investments - 98,66 - - - 3,760.37 3859.03
Other financinl assels - 460.66 - - - - 460.66
‘Total undiscounted financial assets 70,20 441009 827.43 4.674.40 10,706.23 3,399.03 44,587.38
R SR e e s e IR = =
Financial Liabilities .
{2} Dorivative financial insty - 266,32 - - - - 166,32
(b} Trude payables - T4.35 - - - - 7435
(¢) Debi securities . 237.17 439,74 5,690.44 6,393.97 316.88 13078.20
(d) Borrowings (other than debt secusities) 12.01 - B - - - 12,01
() Subordinated Liabilitiss . - [6.55 - 66.05 216,05 298.65
(g} Other financial Liabilitias - 58.65 - - - - 38.65
Total undiscounted financial ahilities 12,81 636.49 456,29 5.690.44 6460.02 532,93 13.788.18
%—
Tatal net financial assets / (abilities) 58.19 3,773.60 37114 (1,016.04) 4,246,21 3,366.10 10.799;22_
Contractual expiry of commitments
The able biefow shaws the contractual expiry by maturity of the Company’s commitmants,
As at March 31, 2019
Particalars On Demand L#15 than 3 months 340 1} mauths ItoSyears Over § Weass Tatal
Estimated amaint of contracts capital account _ B 0.06 . . 0.6
Undrown committed credit lines R - 8,323.44 - - 8.823.44
Uneallzd liabilities on nan-current investments 233187 . N . . 233,87
233,87 - 8.823.50 - - 9,057.37
Skt s camen
As at March 31, 2018
Particulars . On Demand g5 than 3 months 3 to 12 manths ltaSycars Over 5 Yoars Total
Estimated amount of contracts capital account - . 196 . . 195
Undrsvm commiticd credit lincs . N 22812 . R 228,12
Uncaled Habilitics on non-curent investments 269,84 . _ . R 260,84
169,84 - 830,08 - - 1,099.92
AsatM 201
FParticulars On Demand Less than 3 months 3o 82 months 1toSyears Ever 5 Years Tatal
Estinated amaunt of contracts capital aceount - . . . _ .
Undmwg commiticd credit nes N . 212.94 _ . 21294
Uncalled Jiabilitics on non-current investments 154.51 . . N R 154.51
154.51 - 21294 - - 36745
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48. Risk Managcment (Contiued)
48.F Market Risk

Market risk 15 the risk which can affect the Company’s income or the value of 15 holdings of nancial instrements dure to adverse movements in market prices of instrument due 1o interest rales, equity prices, foreign exchanpe rates and crodit spreads, The
jjective of the Company’s market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters. The Company separaces its exposure to masket risks between trading and non-trading portfolios.

1 market risk exposare
w 1zble shows total market risk exposure of financial asscts liabilities and financial liabilities with primary risk associated with class of respective financial assets.
. As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
X %..n.b bnnoc \...un:n:_u._m Mnh“ﬂ ”wn Traded Risk  Non traded risk Mﬂﬂmnﬂn Traded Risk  Non traded risk Mﬂ“ﬁw Traded Risk  Non traded risk w:a““m.mﬂﬁwﬂn risk
Fingncial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,670.11 - 4,670.11 363.75 - 353.75 70.20 - 7020  Interest rate risk
Derivative financial instruments 706.85 706.85 - 287.70 28170 - 259.68 259.68 - Price risk, interest rate risk
Scturities held for trading 1,142.86 1,142,836 - 1,699.74 1,699.74 - 1,230.94 1,230.94 - Price risk, interest rate risk
Trade receivables 2134 - 21.34 12.85 - 12.85 0.02 - 0.02
Other receivables 26.46 - 26,46 10.60 - 10.60 69.76 - 65.76
Loans 24,560.55 - 24,560.55 2797143 - 27,977.43 14,363.67 - 14,363.67 Interest rate risk
Investments 1,862,01 - 1,862.01 4,617.50 B 4,617.50 3,859.03 543.54 3,31549  Price risk, interest rate risk
Other financial assets 668,12 - 668.12 19.33 " 19.33 460.66 - 460.66 Interest rate risk
Total Assets 33,65830 1,849.71 31,508.59 34,988.90 1,987.44 33,001.46 20,313.56 2,034.16 18,279.80
Financial Liobiities
Perivative firancial instnements 42245 422,49 - 21244 212.44 - 266,32 266,32 - Price rigk, interest rate risk
Trade payables 323.89 - 32389 345.54 - 345.54 7435 - 7435
Debt securities 22,275.76 - 22,275.76 17,970.76 - 17.970.76 12,945.64 - 12,945.64  Price risk, interest rate risk
Berowings (other than debt securitics) 33118 - 337.18 8,198.80 - 8,198.80 12.01 - 12.01 Interest rale risk
Subordinated Liabilities 161.17 - 16117 16126 - 16126 [61.12 .. 161.12  Interest rate risk
Other financial ligbilities 2274 - 214 16.54 - 16.54 58.65 - 58.65
‘Total Liabilittes 23.543.23 422.49 13,120.74 26,905.34 212.44 Namwn.we 13,518.09 266.32 13,251.77

e
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48. Risk Management

48.F Market Risk (continued)

Interest Rage Risk

The principal risk 10 which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from floctuations in the fature cash Aows or fair values of
financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through menitoring interest rate
gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands.

ALCQ i the monitoring body for compliance with these limits. ALCO reviews the intorest rate gap statement and the mix of floating and
fixed rate assets and Habilities, Balince Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day management of interest rate risk.

Interest mate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fir values of financial
instruments. The Board has established limits on the nor~trading interest rate gaps for stipulated periods. The Company’s policy is to monitor
positions ont a daily basis and hedging strategies are used to ensure positions are mafntained within the established lmits.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being consiant) of the
Company’s statement of profit and loss and equity. The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in
interest rotes on the profit or Joss for 8 year, based on the floating mte non-trading financial assets and {inancial liabilitics heid at 31 March
2019 and at 31 March 2018

Interest rate sensitivity

As at March 31, 2619

Increase in  Sensitivily of Sensitivity of  Decrease in Sensitivity of Sensitivity

basis points Profit Equity basis points Profit of Equity
Bank borrewings 3 25 {0.81) - 25 0.81 -
Corporate debt securities 235 {2.86} - 25 2.86 -
As at March 31, 2018

Increage in  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of Decrensein  Sensitivity of Sensktivity

basis points Profit Equity basis points Profit of Equity
Bank borrowings 25 (1.06) - 25 1.06 -
Corporate debt securities 25 (0.25) - 25 0.25 -

Price Risk

The Company's exposure to securities price risk arises from investments held in Equity Shares classificd in the balance sheet at fair value
through profit or loss. To manage jts price risk arising from such investments, the Company diversifics its portfalio. Further these are all debt
base securities for which the exposure is primarily on account of interest rate risk. Quotes (NAV) of these investmenis are available from the
matual fund houses,

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of
individual investment in equity share prices.

As at March 31, 2019

Increase in  Sensitivity 6f Sensitivityof  Decrease in Sensitivity of Sensitivity

price (%) Profit Equity price (%6) Profit of Equity

Derivative instrumenis 5 17175 - 5 (171.75) -
As at March 31, 2018

Increascin  Sensitivity of Sensitivityof  Decrease in Sensitivily of Sensitivity

__price (%) Profit Equity price (%} Profit of Bquily

Derivative instruments 5 (6.32) - 5 6.32 -
Equity instruments 5 5.00 - 5 (5.00% -
Mutual fund units 5 74.94 - 5 (74.94) .

48.G Prepayment Risk

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Company will incur a financial loss because its cusiomers and counterpaities repay or request repayment
carlier or later than expected, such as fixed rate L oans/borrowings i the faliing interest rate scenario.

If 5% of total repayable financial instruments were to prepay at the beginning of the year following the reported period, with all other
variables held constant, the profit before tax for the year would be reduced by Rs. 105.94 million (previous year Rs. 83.61 million)
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49.  First Time adeption

These financial ststements, for (he year ended 31 March 2019, are the first annwal financial s the Compasy has prepzred in
accordance with Ind AS, For periods up to and including the year cnded 31 March 2018, the Ct ipany prepared [is financial statements
in accordance with accounting standards notificd under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the

Companics {Aceaunts) Rules, 2014 {(Indian GAAP or previous GAAP),

Accordingly, the Company has preparcd financist which comply with Ind A5 applicable for periods ending on 33 March
2019, topether with the comparative period data os at and for the year anded 31 Morch 2018, as described in the suminary of signilicant

ting pelicies. In preparing these financisl statements, the Company's apening balance sheet was preparcd as al | Aprit 2017, the
Company's date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by Mie Company in restating its Indian
GAAP financial statements, including the bal sheet ag at | April 2017 and the financinl statements as at and for the year cnded 31
March 208,

Exemptions applied

The Campany has prepared the apening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of | April 2017 (the ransition date) by recognising all asscts
and Iinbilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising flems of assets or lisbilities which ore not permitted by ind AS,
by reclassifying items from previous GAAP 1o Tnd AS as required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recopnised
assefs and Habifities, Hi , this principle {s subjoct (o the certain cxception and certain optional exemptions availed by the
Company as detailed below,

Impsirment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 100 retrospectively; however, as pormitted by Ind AS 101, it hos
used reasonable and supportable information thet is available without undue cost or effort to dotesrning e eredit risk at the date that
financial Instruments were initiaBy recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Funther, the Company
kas not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have
been significant incrzases in credit tisk sineo initial recopnition, as permitted by Ind AS 101

Past busincss combinations

The Company has elected not 4o apply Ind AS 103 Business Combinat pectively to past business combinations that sccurred
befare the transition date of 1 April 2017,

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, investment property, and intangible assets

The Company has elected to continue with the cerrying value of all of its plant and eguipment, invesiment property, and intangible
assets recognised 5 of 1 April 2017 (transifion date) measured as per the provious GAAP and use that eatTying value as ils deemed cost
as of the transition dato.

Share based Payments

The Greup has applied the requitements of Ind AS 102 Shore-based Pay to equity { st are d 35 of the transitian
to Ind AS (1 April 2017)

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Company has applicd Appandix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an Ammangement conlains a Lease 1o determine whetber an
amangement existing at the transition date contains a kease on the basis of facts ard clrcumstances existing at that date,
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49. First Time adoption {centinzed)
Classification and measurement of finaneisl sssets:

The Company las clussificd and measured the financial assets on the basis of facts and elrcusnsiances that exist at the date of tronsition
to Ind AS,

The reconcifistions of equity and tots} Comprehensive i in 4 with Previous GAAP to Ind AS are cxplained below,

Reconciliation of Equity as at:

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Total Equily / Sharcholders' Funds as per Previous GAAP 8,384.33 5,396.97
Add: Impact of merger (Refer note 51,1} - 1,646.04
Ind AS adjustments increasing / (decreasing) net profit as reported
under indian GAAP:
Effective interest rate on financial assets and labilities (net) * (186.90) 63.87
Expested credit loss provision (253.58) (£78.35)
Fair valuation of assets and liabilities 249,39 6249
Others 2126 -
Deferred tax adjustment on above 82.88 (68.32)
Total adjustment to Equity {80.94) {120.31)
Total Equity / Sharehelders' Funds as per Ind AS 8,303.39 6,922.76

Recongilistion of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2018

. Year Ended
Particulars 31 March 2018
Profit as reported under previous GAAP (A) 133220
Ind AS adjustment on account-of:

EfTestive interest rate on financial assets and liabilities (net) * (250.77)
Expected credit loss provision (75.22)
Fair valuation of assets and liabilities (113.09)
Fair valuntion of employec stock options (L.57)
Others 2122
Tax effect on above adjustments 145.07
(268.36)
Net profit as per Ind AS 1,063.84

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax} - Items that will not be reclassified o

profit or loss 0.05
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS 1,063.89
* The Company has issucd bonchmark Hnked det {debentures) and is required to sepregate the co P of host and
embedded derivative within it to eifect appropristc accounting Lreatment under IND AS, Fhie Cormpany has accordingly carried out the
of dot s and recogalzed reversal of finance cost (pre tax) of Bs, 50.56 million in \ic {rassition reserve as at Aprl I,

2017, nnd incremental finsnce cost (pre tax) of Rs. 234,82 miflion and Rs. 316,85 million in the profit and loss for the financial years
T 2017-18 and 2018-19 respectively, in line with the requirsment under IND AS.
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49. First Time adoption (continued)
Classification and measurcment of financial assets:
Reference notes to reconciliation of Equity and profit & Loss
Remeasurements of post-cmployment benefit obligations

Both under Indien GAAP end Ind AS, the Company recognised costs refated o its post-employment defined benefit plan on an
actuarial basis, Under Indizn GAAP, the ntire cost, including actuoris! gains and losses, are charged to proiit or loss. Under Ind AS,

prising of nctunria] pains and lossos, flie effect of the asset eeiling, excluding fuded in ret int on
the net defined henefit isbility and the return on plan assets excluding included In net inferest on the net defined benefit
lisbility) arc recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or eredit to rotained camings through OCI. Thus
the employce benefit cost is reduced’ by Rs. 0.08 million and remeasurement gaing/ Josses on defined benefit plans has been recognlsed
in Ui OCI net of tox.

Shiare Based Payment

Under the previaus GAAP, the cost of ESOPs wore gnised using the Intrinsic value method. Under End AS, the cost of equity
setiled share-based plan is recognised based on the fhir valus of the options as at the grant date,

Trade receivables /Loans:

Under Provious GAAP the Company has crealed provision for impalmment of receivables and Loans based on incwrred losses where as
under Ind AS, Impairment sllowance hos been determined bascd on Expected credit loss modet (ECL).

Effective Interest Rate (EIR)

Under previous GAAP, Loan Pracessing fees charged to customer was recognised upfront in Stotcment of profit and loss whils under
Tnd A8, such fecs are included in initial recognition amount of finaneiat assats.

Under previous GAAP, transaction cost on borrowings were charged o Statement of profil and Joss upfront while wnder Tnd AS, such
cost are included in initial recognition amount of Snangial liabitity and is amortised over the temre of the borrowings.

Deferred Tax
Tndian GAAP requires deferned tax ing using the stat of prafit and loss approach, which focuses on differences between
taxable profits and sccounting profita for ihe period. Ind AS 12 quites entities to t for deferred taxes using the belance sheet

approach, which focuses on temporary differcnces between the carrying amount of an asset or lisbility in the balance sheet and its tax
base, The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred (ax on now temporary differences which was not
required under Indian GAAP.

Valuation of Envestments/Securities held for trading

Under Previous GAAP Investnents in Shares, Debentures, Mutual fund units, Govt Securities and securitics recoipls were classified in
Current Investment, Sccurities held for trading and long temm investment based an insen of holding prriod and realisablity Long-term

investments were carried at cost less provision for other than temporary decline in the valuo of such i Current in
and Stock in trade were carried at lower of cost and merket value. Under Ind AS, these investments, other than invesuments in
Prefi shares, are d 2 fair vatue, The § in Pref shares is 1ot ised cost,

Reclassification of provision of standard / non-performing assets (NPA)

Under Indian GAAP provision for NPA and standard asset were I d under provisions, However, under Ind AS financiat asscls
measured at amortised cost {majorly foans) are presented net of provision for expested credit josses, Conscquently, the Company has
reclassified ilie Indian GAAP provisions for standard nsscts / NPA's amounting to Rs, 26,97 million and Rs. S9£.11 million as on |
April 2017 and 31 March 2018 respectively,
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50 Regulatory disclosures - RBI

The following additional information is disclosed in the terms of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Master Direction DNBR, PE). 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 0 B,2016 as amended.

50.01  Invesiments

2019 2018
1) Value of Investments (Including Securitics held for trading)

i)  Gross Value of Investments
a} In India 3,004.87 6,317.24
b) Outside India -

if} Provisions for Depreciation
a} In India .
) Cutside Indis -

iif) Net Value of Investments

a) In Indig 3,004.87 6,317.24
b} Qutside ndia -

2} Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments,

i) Opening balance “
ii) Add : Provisions made during the year -
i} Less : Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions during the year -
iv} Closing balance .

50.02  Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

2019 28018
i) CRAR{%) 2BA4Y 23.35%
ii}  CRAR -Tier I eapital {%} 26.64% 21.92%
iii)  CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) L8O 1.43%
iv}  Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-H capital 161.17 161.26
v} Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

50,03 Exposure 1o real estate sector, both direct and indirect

2019 2018

A Direct Exposure
(i) Residential Mongages -

Lending fully seeured by morigages on residential property that is or will e occupied by the bomrower - .
or that is rented:( Individusl housing loans up to *.15 lakhs may be shown separately)

(i) Commerciat Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose 14,178.15 17,793.60
commercial premises, multi.family residential buildings, eulti-tenanted cornmercial premises,
industrial or warchouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc). Exposure
includes non-fund based (NFB) limits.

{#i1) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and ofher securitised exposures -

- Residential
- Commercial Real Estate -

B Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based oxposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finanee -
Companies {(HFCs)

C  Others {not covered above) -
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50.04 Expastire te Capitaf Market
2019 2018
i) dircet jnvestment in equity shares, convertible bouds, convestible debentures and units of cquity-oricnted mutual 596,72 593.77
funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt
#i} advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other or on cleen basis to individuals for investment in 3,074.58 976.89
shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-criented mutual
funds
iy advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or cenvertible debentures or units of equity 6,845.75 8.078.25
orieated mutval funds are iaken as primary security
iv) advances for any oiber purposes (o the extent secured by the coliatera security of shiares or convertible bonds or - -
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutuat funds ie. where the primary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures  uniis of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not futly cover the advances
v} secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guaranices issued on behall of stockbrokers and market makers - .
vi) losns sanctioned to corporates against the sccurity of shores / bands / debertures or other securities or on clean basis - -
for ing promoter's coniribution to the equity of new companics in asticipation of raising resarces
vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues - -
viif oll exposures to Venture Capital Funds {(both regi d and unreg; f) 91.65 82,37
ix) others {not covered above) . -
Totat Exposuce 10,608.7¢ 9.731.28
50.05 Asset Liability Management -Maturily pattern of certain items of assets and liabifities
As at 31 March 2019
Linbilitles Asscls
Particulars Borrowings from Inter-corporate Loans and Securities held for
Banlks Market borrowings ioan Advances Investments trading
1 day 10 30/31 days (One month} - 3,618.90 12.40 83435 - 1,142.86
Over One months to 2 months - 816,78 - 146.95 - -
Qver 2 months vp to 3 months 25.00 139.20 - 879.80 - -
Over 3 months 1o 6 months 25.00 L3953 - 80180 - -
Qver 6 months to | year 50.00 4,560.96 - 2,864.12 . .
Over | yearto 3 years 200.00 6,636.87 - 15,131,07 - -
Over 3 years 1o 5 years 2478 2,951.62 . 3,486.62 - -
Over 5 years - 2,317.2¢ - 897.39 1,862.01 -
Tatal 324.78 22,436.93 1240 25,042,720 1,862.01 1,142.86

Farthier, the Company kad temporarily deployed its excess liquidity aggregating to Rs. 4,501.92 million as a1 March 31, 2619 in the short tetmn fixed deposit with the bank.
Accordingly, the Company is well pofsed to meet its contrantual obligations aver all the maturity due dates.

As at 31 March 2018

. Liabilitics Assels
Particulars Borrowings fram Inter-corporate Loans and Securitics held for
Bani Market horrowings loa?u Advances lavestments trading

1 day to 30731 days (One thonth) - 109,65 7.774.17 568,38 - 1,699,794
Over One months to 2 months - 635.25 - 9L1® - -
Qver 2 months up 1o 3 mionths 25.00 306.31 - 72870 - -
Over 3 monthis to 6 months 25.00 3,708.37 - 495,71 - -
Over 6 montls 1o ] year 50,00 2,190.73 - 468.07 - -
Over | yearto 3 years 200.00 8,290.23 - 14,174.83 - -
Over 3 years to 5 years 124.63 1,127,717 . 9.980.27 - .
Over 5 years - 1,763.73 - 2.315.07 4,617.50 .
Total 424.63 18,132.02 7,774.17 28.822.11 4,617.50 1.699.74

* The Company had taken temporary borrowing from its related parties aggrega
past of its ALCO/ALM activities had realigned its borrowings and assets profile

ting to Rs. 7,761.96 million leading to a mismalch as at March 31, 2018, The Campany a3
and had ensured 2 positive ALM position a5 at March 31, 2018,
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50.06 Movements of stage 3 assels:

The following table sets forly, for the perinds indicaled, the details ef movement of stage 3 assets , stage 3 sssels net of stage 3 provision and stage 3 Prrovision.

2019 2018

i) Stage 3 asscts ent of stage 3 provision to to net advarces (%) 0.18% 0.60%
1y Mouvement of Stage 3 nssetes

) Opening Balance 483.55 -

b} Additlons during the year 86.23 1,146.15

¢} Reductions during the year* 483.55 662.60

d) Closing balance 86,23 481,55
i} Movement of Stage 3 assets net of stage 3 provisions

a) Opening Balance - -

b} Additions during the year 43.60 -

¢) Reductions guring the year - P

d} Closing balance 43.60 -
iv) Movement of stage 3 provisions: (excheding provision on Stage 1/Stage 2)

5} Opening Balonce 4%31.55 .

b) Additions during the year 42.63 1.146.15

¢} Reductions during the year 483.55 662.60

d) Closing balance 42.63 483.55

*  Includes slage 3 assets writicn off during the year Rs 483.55 million (Previous year: Rs 294.80 million)

Note : The movement of stage 3 assels disclosed for the year ended 313t March 2019 and 31st March
norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India

2018 is for principal outstanding only as par extant IRAC

50.07  Deuails of 'Provisions and Conting
Ereakup of provisions and confingencics shown in the Statement of Profit and loss 2019 2018
i} Provisions for depreciation on Investment - -
if} Provision towards Stage 3 assets (440.33) 493.29
iii} Provision made towards lncome tnx 67017 a77.90
iv) Provision for Stage 1/Stage 2 assets 77.30 £33.62
v} Other Provision and Conlingencies
a} Provision for gratsity 4.49 0.26
b} Provision for compensated ab 1.99 0.12
50.08 Concentration af Deposits, Advances, Exposuires and NPAs '
2819 2018
A) Concentration of Advances
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 15,718.14 17,488.18
% of Advances to fwenty largest borrowers 1o Tolal Advances 62.77% 60.68%
B) Concentration of Exposures
Totat Exposures {o twenty [argest bermowers / Customers 15,718.14 17,488.18
% of Exposures to twenty largest bormowers / Cistomers to Total Advances 62,.77% 60.68%
C) Concentration of NPAs
Total Exposures to top Four NPAs 86.23 481.55
D) Sector-wise NPAs
% of to Ti
Sectors/Particulars “o NP;:S t]:; ¢ ::;::dvnncus
1 Apriculture & allied nctivities - -
2 MSME . -
3 Comorate borrowers 8.42% 1.80%
4  Services _ .
5  Unsecured personal louns - -
5 Aulo loans . .
7  Ofhier personal loans - -
50,09 Detaifs of Single Borrower Limit and Borrower Group Limit ded By the Company
During the year ended 31 Morch 2018 and 31 March 2017, il Company's credit exposure to single borrowers and group borrowers were willsin the Smits presoribed by
the RBI.
50,10 Customer Compialnts

(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginaing of the year .
{b} No. of complaints received during the year .
{¢) No. of complaints redressed during the year -
(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year .
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50.11  Note to the Balance Sheel of @ non-deposit taking non-banking financial company (as required in ferms of Peragraph 13 of Non-Bankings Financial {Non-Deposit
Accepring or Holding) Compantes Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank} Direciions, 2007.

Liabilities Slde:
Amount Outstanding Amowunt Overduc
Partl
articulars 2019 2018 2019 2018

1) Loans and advances availed by NBFC inclusive of interest accrusd
thereon but not paid
a) Debentures:
(other than these fatling within the meaning of Public deposity

(i) Secured 19,286.03 15,849,23 - -

{ii) Unsecured 3,150.90 2,282,179 - -
b) Deferred Credits - . - -
¢) Term Loans 324,78 424.63 - -
d)} Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - 1,761.96 - -
¢} Commercial Paper - - - .
f} Other loans - - - .

(i} Inter corporate loan 1240 12.21 - N
Assets stde:

Amount Outstanding

2019 2018
2) Break ap of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
{(other than those included in (3) below)
a)Seciured 22,365.26 28,283.27
b}Unsecured : 2676.94 538.84
3} Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities NA NA
a) Lease assels including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
() Finoncial Lease - .
(ii) Operating Lease - -
b) Stock on hire incliding hire charges under sundry debtors )
(i) Assets on hire - -
(ii} Repossessed assets - -
¢} Other loans counting fowards Asset Financing Company activities
(i} Loans where assets have been repossessed - -
{ii) Otherloans - .
4} Break up of Investments
Current Investments {including Securities held for trading):
a) Quoted:
(i) Shares: Equity - 100.00
Preference - -
(it} DPebentures and Bonds 1,142.86 10101
(iit) Units of Mutual Funds - -
{iv) Government Securities - -
{v) Othors - -
b} Unguoted:
(i) Sharcs: Equity - .
Preference - -
(ii} Dcbentures and Bonds - -
{iti} Units of Muiual Funds - 1,498.73
{iv) Government Securities - .

(v} Others (Pass through certificates) - -
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§0.11  Nate to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking nen-banking financial eampany {as requived in terms of Paragraph 18 of Non-Bankirag Financial (Non-Deposit
Accepting or Holding) Companies Pridential Norms (Reserve Bank} Divections, 2007, {Continned)

4) Break up of Investments (Continued)

Long-Term Investments { Net of Provision )
a) Quoted:
(i}  Shares: Equity
Preference
(it} Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of Mutua) Funds
{iv) Government Securities
(v} Others
b) Unquoted:
(i}  Shares: Equity
Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(ii} Units of Mutual Funds
{iv) QGovemment Secutities
(v} Others
- Investments in security receipls of trusts
~Investments in unils of funds

-Investments in wanmnis

Amount Qutstanding
2019 2018

596.72 393.77
37.27 25.69

845.69 3,692.00
38233 306.04

5) Borrower group-wige classification of assets financed as in (2} and (3) above
As at 31 March 2019

Amount net of provisions
Particulars Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Partics®™®
(a) Subsidiaries - . .
(b) Companies in the same group - 1422.14 1,422.14
2. Other than related parties 11,885.i8 1,253.23 23,138.41
TOTAL 21,885.18 2,675.37 24,560.55
As ot 31 March 2018
Amount net of provisions
Particulars Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Partieg**
{4 Subsidiaries - - .
(4 Companies in the same group - 27.07 27.07
() Other related parties - - “
2. Cther than releted parties 27,438.89 51148 27,950.36
TOTAL 27,438.89 538.54 27,977.43

6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long-term) tn shares and securitles {both quoted and unquoted)

Market Value f Break up Book Value
Particulars or fair value or NAV {Net of Provisions)
2019 2018 2019 2018
1) Related parties**
{n} Subsidiaries - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group S80.82 9i4.82 880.82 914,82
fc) Other related parties " - - .
2) Other than related parties 2,124.05 540242 2,124.05 540242
TOTAL 3,004.87 6,317.24 3,004.87 6,317.24

** As per Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures
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5011 Note to tiic Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financlal compary (as required i terms of Paragraph 18 of Nen-Banking Financial (Non-Depasit
Accepling or Holding) Companies Prudential Norys (Reserve Bank} Divections, 2007 {Continued)

Ty Other Information
FPartleulars 2019 2018
a} Gross Stage 3 assets ’
1} Refated padies - -
2} Other than related pantics 86.23 483.55
b) Stage 3 Asscts Net of Provision
1} Related parties 43.60 -
2} Other than refated parties - -
<} Assets acquired in satisfzction of debt - .
Notes:

I As defined in paragraph 2{1)(xii} of the Nen-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Beposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998
2 Market value/Breakup Value or Fair Value or NAV is taken as sante zs book value in case il unguoted shares in absence of market vale / breakup value or fair
value or NAV,

5012 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators - None

5013  The Company bas not restructured any loans and advances during the year ended 31 March 2018 and 3| March 2017.
50.44  Disclosute of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators- None

5015  Overseaz Asscts - Nil (Previous year - Nil)

5016 Details of financing of parent company products - None {Previous year - none)

50.17  Off-Balance sheet SPV sponsored - None (Previous year - none)

50.18  Draw Down from Reserves: (Previous year - Nil)

50.1%  Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators- Nil (Previous year - Nil)

50.20  Note to the Balance Sheet of a non-bornking financial company as required in tenns of Chapter Il paragraph 5 of Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 - Nil
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{Currency:Indian rupees in million}

50.21 Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencies

As at31 March 2019

Instrement catesrory Brickworks CRISIL CARE ICRA
i) Long Term Instruinents
Rating AA+ AA/Stable AA AA
Amount 3,000 12,000 1,500 13,000
i) Short term instruments
Rating Al+ Al+
Amount - 10,000 - 12,000
fi) Market linked debentures .
a Short Term PP- MELD Al+R PP-MLD [ICRAJALH
Rating - 5,000 - 1,500
Amount
b Long Term
PP-MLD AA+ PP MLD AA PP MILD-AA PP-MLD [ICRAJAA
Ratin g r{Stable
Amount 3,600 29,000 6,893 16,870
As at 31 March 2018
Instrument category Brickworks CRISIL ICRA
i) Long Term Instrumenis
Rating AA+ AA/Stable AA
Amount 3,300 12,000 13,500
ii} Short term instruments
Rating Al+ Al
Amount 10,000 10,080
iif) Market linked debentures
a Short Term PP- MLD Al+R PP-MLD [ICRA)AL+
Rating 5,000 1,500
Amount
b Long Temn
PP-MLD AA+ PPMLD AA PP-MLD |ICRAJAA
Rating r/Stable
Amount 3,000 11,500 13,000
50.22 Details of transaction with non execirive directors

The Company has not undertaken any transaction with it's

3

-" &
7 ;
S

non-excentive directors during the year ended 31 March 2019 (Previous years Nil),




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019
{Currency:Indian rupees in million) ~

51

i)

i)

Othier disclosurce

Assets and liabilities acquired on account of merger of finanace division of Edelwelss Finan¢e and Investments
Limited, a fctlow subsidiary

Pursuant to the Scheme of Asrangement {“the Scheme”) under Sections 391 to 394 and Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act 2013 sanctioned by the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide ils order dated 25 July 2017 (“the Order™,
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited (EFIL), a fellow subsidiaty, (“The Dlemerged Company” or "The Transferor
Company™), has demerged the Lending and Investment Busitiess to Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (formerly known as
Arum Investments Private Limited) (“First Resulting Company” or “EW Finvest™), which is anather NBFC engaged in the
business of lending and investments, and the Training Centre Business to Edel Land Limited (*Sccond Resulting Company™
or “ELL") which undentakes real estate activities with effect from 1 April 2016 (“the Appointed Date™). The scheme has come
into effect from 1 August 2017 {*the Effective Date"). Accordingly, the opening balance sheet of the Company as at | Apil
2017 has been prepared taking into account the effect of the said Order,

In aceordance with the Scheme:

On the Scheme becoming effective with effect from the Appointed date, the Company has laken over all the assels aggregating
Rs.10,214,424,626 and labilities aggregating 1o Rs. 8,717,815,930 as appearing in the books of Transferor Company related

1o business of lending and investment business at its respective book value as on Appointed Date. Net asset acquired include.

Asset/Liabilitics received under the Scheme Amount in Rs. Miltion
Assets

Investments 3,650.54
Deferred Tax . 104.93
Loans and Advances 5.801.16
Other Current Assets and Trade Receivables 657,79
Total Assets (A) 16,214.42
Liabilitics

Long Term Bomowings . 5,874.52
Provisions 65.78
Trade Payables 17.95
Other current labilities 1,555.56
Short term borrowings 1,224.00
TFotal Liabilitics (B) 8,737.82
Net nssets transferred (A-B) 1,476.61

The Scheme of attangement is a tax neutral merger as per the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
accordingly, the assets and liabilitics as on appointed date were transferred &t cost. The Company has issued 8,279,275 equity
shares of Rs.10 cach at premium of Rs. 168.35 each equity share aggregaling to Rs. 1,476,608,696 to Edelweiss Financial
Services Limited the 100% sharcholder of Edelweiss Finance & Investment Limited in setlement of the purchasc
consideration for the lending and investment business acquired,

On account of merger, The Company has received profit after tax of Rs. 286,006,643 from April [st, 2016 {(appointed date) to
March 31st, 2017 from Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited.

The company has cancelled il's 466,300, 0.01% Compulsorily convertible non- cumulative preference shares - Series A at par
having face value of Rs. 10 each and premium of Rs. 240 each. These shares were held by EFIL and trensferred to the
Company on account of merger.
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51.3

Other disclosure (continued)

Opcn interests equity Index futares / equity stock futures have open interests as at 31 March 2019

Loang Position Short Position
Index Name  Maturity grouping Number of contracts  Number of units  Number of contracts Nwmber of units
Nifty <1 rmonth 2,549 191,175 - -
Stock future <1 month 1,200 1,054,874 - -

Open interests equily index futures / equity stock fistures have open interests as at 31 March 2018

Long Position _Short Position_
Index Name Maturity grouping ~ Number of contracts Number of units Number of confracts  Number of units
Nifty < 1 month - - 519 38,925
Stock future < | month 361 379,975 - -

Option contracts are outstnnding ax on balance sheet date

31 Macch 2019 31 March 2018
Option Type Premium paid Premiom received Premium paid Premium received
(Net of provision made)  (Net of provision made)  (Net of provision made)  (Net of provision made}

Equity Index , 37935 133 0.03 10,56

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material foresceable
losses. At the year end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/ accounting standards for
material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts {including derivative contractsy has been made in the books of accounts.,
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52 Previous year figures have been reclassified to conform to this year's classification,
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